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 P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S 1 

 (6:33 p.m.) 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let's please come 3 

to order. 4 

  Good evening, ladies and gentlemen. 5 

 This is a public hearing of the Zoning 6 

Commission for the District of Columbia for 7 

Wednesday, October 10, 2012. 8 

  My name is Anthony Hood, and I am 9 

going to ask the dais if they would introduce 10 

themselves this evening, beginning to my far 11 

left. 12 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  Sharon Schellin, 13 

Secretary to the Zoning Commission, Office of 14 

Zoning. 15 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Michael 16 

Turnbull representing the Architect of the 17 

Capitol. 18 

  COMMISSIONER MILLER:  Robert 19 

Miller, Mayoral Appointee as of last Thursday. 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  We are going to skip 21 
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by me for now. 1 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  Marcie 2 

Cohen, Mayoral Appointee. 3 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Peter May 4 

representing the National Park Service. 5 

  MR. JESICK:  Matt Jesick with the 6 

D.C. Office of Planning. 7 

  MR. LAWSON:  Joel Lawson with the 8 

D.C. Office of Planning. 9 

  MR. HENSON:  Jamie Henson with the 10 

District's Department of Transportation. 11 

  MR. WHITE:  Bryon White with DDOT. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you, 13 

everyone. 14 

  This proceeding is being recorded 15 

by a Court Reporter and is also webcast live. 16 

 Accordingly, we must ask that you refrain from 17 

any disruptive noises or actions in the hearing 18 

room.  19 

  The subject of this evening's 20 

hearing, which is a continuation of the 21 
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September 13th hearing, is Zoning Commission 1 

Case Number 11-17.  This is a request by the 2 

Adams Morgan Church Hotel for approval of a 3 

consolidated PUD and related map amendment for 4 

property located in Square 2560. 5 

  Notice of today's hearing was 6 

published in the D.C. Register on May 25, 2012, 7 

and copies of that announcement are available 8 

to my left on the wall near the door. 9 

  The hearing will conducted in 10 

accordance with the provisions of 11 DCMR 3022 11 

as follows.  First, there is a possibility to 12 

have cross-examination of the applicant by the 13 

Champlain Street Neighbors, possibly; report 14 

of the Office of Planning and DDOT; report of 15 

other government agencies, if any; report of 16 

the ANC, in this case it's ANC-1C; organizations 17 

and persons in support.   18 

  We will then have the parties in 19 

opposition, which is Champlain Street Neighbors 20 

and Kalorama Citizens Association.  21 
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Organizations and persons in opposition and 1 

rebuttal and closing by the applicant. 2 

  The following time constraints will 3 

be maintained in this meeting.  Parties in 4 

opposition, 30 minutes each; organizations, 5 

five minutes; individuals, three minutes. 6 

  The Commission intends to adhere to 7 

the time limits as strictly as possible in order 8 

to hear the case in a reasonable period of time. 9 

 The Commission reserves the right to change 10 

the limit -- time limits for presentations, if 11 

necessary, and notes that no time shall be ceded. 12 

  All persons appearing before the 13 

Commission are to fill out two witness cards. 14 

 These cards are located to my left on the table 15 

near the door.  Upon coming forward to speak 16 

to the Commission, please give both cards to 17 

the Reporter sitting to my right before taking 18 

a seat at the table.   19 

  When presenting information to the 20 

Commission, please turn on and speak into the 21 
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microphone, first stating your name and home 1 

address.  When you are finished speaking, 2 

please turn your microphone off, so that your 3 

microphone is no longer picking up sound or 4 

background noise. 5 

  The decision of the Commission in 6 

this case must be based exclusively on the public 7 

record.  To avoid any appearance to the 8 

contrary, the Commission requests that persons 9 

present not engage the members of the Commission 10 

in conversation during any recess or at any time. 11 

  In addition, there should be no 12 

direct contact whatsoever with any Commissioner 13 

concerning this matter, be it written, 14 

electronic, or by telephone.  Any materials 15 

received directly by a Commissioner will be 16 

discarded without being read.  Any calls will 17 

be ignored. 18 

  I read that all the time.  Any calls 19 

will be ignored.  You never know what is going 20 

to happen if you call one of us.  Might not be 21 
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ignored.  You might hear some different 1 

language. 2 

  The staff will be available 3 

throughout the hearing to discuss procedural 4 

questions.  Please turn off all beepers and cell 5 

phones at this time, so as not to disrupt these 6 

proceedings.   7 

  Would all individuals wishing to 8 

testify please rise to take the oath?  Ms. 9 

Schellin, would you please administer the oath? 10 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  Please raise your 11 

right hand. 12 

(Oath administered to all persons present who 13 

wish to testify.) 14 

  Thank you. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And let me just say 16 

at the beginning, Vice Chair, I did introduce 17 

myself.  I said, "My name is Anthony Hood."  18 

Okay.  I just wanted to make sure I didn't ignore 19 

that. 20 

  Ms. Schellin, do we have any 21 
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preliminary matters? 1 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  At the close of the 2 

last hearing, the Commission did ask for some 3 

information from the Champlain Street 4 

Neighbors.  They have submitted that 5 

information in Exhibit 141, and also it looks 6 

like they supplemented it at Exhibit 146, which 7 

you received this evening.  And also, Exhibit 8 

150. 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  10 

Commissioners, if you need time to look over 11 

what we've got this evening, let's do that at 12 

this time, and let's take up the topic of whether 13 

we are going to do reconsideration of the party 14 

status of Champlain Street based on the evidence 15 

that was discovered.  And, actually, we can 16 

revisit any party status that is given at any 17 

time upon a finding of different information. 18 

  So would somebody like to start off 19 

with the information we received? 20 

  (No response.) 21 
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  Well, let me cut to the chase.  I 1 

am not necessarily -- I am not really thrilled 2 

about what I see.  I am inclined to go ahead 3 

and let them retain party status, and I would 4 

just encourage the representative who will be 5 

the representative for the Champlain Street 6 

Neighbors to stay on focus and on point in his 7 

cross-examination. 8 

  While I think that -- and I will 9 

still say this.  I think that the application, 10 

and even the submission, is -- and especially 11 

what I got the other day with the names -- I 12 

think it is kind of weak, but I understand that 13 

everybody is not down here every week doing 14 

zoning.  So I will -- that weighted my decision. 15 

  Let me open it up.  Any other 16 

comments? 17 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Mr. Chair, 18 

the only comment that I have is that there were 19 

a couple of pages in here that talked about a 20 

petition regarding the hotel, and it talked 21 
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about Columbia Road Commercial and Friends and 1 

Champlain Street Neighbors.  We are only 2 

dealing with Champlain Street Neighbors, not 3 

Columbia Road. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Right.  That was -- 5 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  I just 6 

wanted to make sure.  I don't want this mixed 7 

up. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Right.  Champlain 9 

Street Neighbors is all that is going to have 10 

party status.  That was what we were 11 

reconsidering to look at -- take another look 12 

at our last hearing. 13 

  Anyone else? 14 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Mr. Chairman, I 15 

agree that we should continue with the Champlain 16 

Street Neighbors as a party, and I would also 17 

encourage the party to keep their questions on 18 

point during cross-examination.  We often vary 19 

from the principle of asking questions about 20 

what was stated in testimony, and we go far 21 
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afield.  There will be plenty of opportunity 1 

to testify after we get through 2 

cross-examination. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  So we will 4 

not reconsider.  Typically, when we reconsider 5 

and I go to the applicant -- but in this case 6 

it's on our own that we were taking another look 7 

at that, so I will not be coming to you, Mr. 8 

Glasgow.  You guys just get ready for 9 

cross-examination.   10 

  I'm going to ask Mr. Otten if he will 11 

come forward and proceed with his 12 

cross-examination.  You've got four seats.  13 

You can pick whichever one you want. 14 

  (Pause.) 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you for 16 

your patience.  Good evening, Commissioners.  17 

Good evening, Mr. Glasgow. 18 

  Okay.  So we are talking about the 19 

Adams Morgan Historic Hotel, Zoning Commission 20 

Case 11-17. 21 
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  For the record, my name is Chris 1 

Otten representing the Champlain Street 2 

Neighbors, as authorized. 3 

  Okay.  Let's start with these 4 

questions.  Isn't it true that this proposed 5 

project is to be situated right in the heart 6 

of Adams Morgan? 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think the record 8 

reflects the location of the project. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't Adams Morgan 10 

known to be a neighborhood conservation area? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We had a witness who 12 

testified as and delivered a report with respect 13 

to the comprehensive plan.  The Zoning 14 

Commission, when this case was scheduled for 15 

this evening, it was stated that he would not 16 

be available this evening, and there was no 17 

objection made by Mr. Otten. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  I believe at that 19 

hearing you said you would be able to answer 20 

on his behalf? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  I did not say I could 1 

answer on his behalf.  I am not a witness in 2 

the case. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  I believe that's on the 4 

record, and that is -- I didn't have the 5 

opportunity to speak at that time.  Otherwise, 6 

I would have contested that. 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Otten was here at 8 

the hearing. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  I wasn't allowed to 10 

speak at that point, because we didn't -- I 11 

didn't have party status. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, put that 13 

question in the parking lot, and let's use that 14 

when you do your presentation to us.  Let's go 15 

to the next question. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So this is 17 

really for, then, other than Mr. Glasgow, 18 

anybody on the panel.  And I'm trying to frame 19 

these questions in a yes, no, affirmative, 20 

negative, so we can move through this. 21 
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  Wouldn't you agree that the hotel 1 

plans have been quite controversial over the 2 

years in the community? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Objection. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Sustained.  Next 5 

question. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  How many 7 

hearings at the HPRB was heard regarding this 8 

project, at the Historic Preservation -- 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't think we 10 

testified -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- Review Board? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't think we 13 

testified as to how many hearings the HPRB had. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  But you did testify you 15 

were at the HPRB, correct? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No, I was not at the 17 

HPRB. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  The developer, who is 19 

behind you, was at the HPRB hearings? 20 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The developers did 21 
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make presentations at the HPRB.   1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And how many hearings 2 

were held there? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I object to the 4 

question.  It's not relevant to this 5 

proceeding. 6 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten?  Mr. 7 

Otten? 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  It has to do with -- 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, let's do 10 

this.  Things that you have questions, that they 11 

did not testify to, like how many hearings was 12 

at the Historic Preservation, for me -- 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- that's great and 15 

fine.  I'm dealing with what is in front of me. 16 

 Do stuff to help us. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  This has to do 18 

with -- that line of questioning had to do with 19 

the prior question, which was about 20 

controversial plans.  The reason why there were 21 
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so many hearings was because -- 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, let me 2 

help you.   3 

  MR. OTTEN:  It wasn't overwhelming 4 

support. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, it was 6 

controversial for us, too, because we did not 7 

initially set this down.  We had an issue up 8 

here we deliberated.  So we got -- we all know 9 

that.  I think all of us are on the same page. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  As the questions 12 

that are going to -- 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- help us with our 15 

decision. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'll just keep going. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you, 19 

Chair. 20 

  How long has this hotel project been 21 
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in the works? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Jeremy?  Go ahead. 2 

  MR. SELMAN:  I believe since 2007. 3 

 My involvement did not start in 2007. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And at the last hearing, 5 

isn't it correct that the architect, Pro PX, 6 

said 2005? 7 

  MR. SELMAN:  If that's on the 8 

record, then that's on the record. 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yeah.  If it's a 10 

matter of public record -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  We noticed that 12 

there are various limited liability 13 

corporations involved in this matter.  Can you 14 

name those, please?  These are on the MOUs 15 

associated with the amenities. 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That was not in -- 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  It's on the record. 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- Mr. Selman's 19 

testimony.  Mr. Chairman, things that are on 20 

the record, I don't understand the purpose of 21 
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the question, then. 1 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Mr. Chairman? 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Yes. 3 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  I just have a 4 

suggestion on this.  I mean, if you know the 5 

answer, it is faster to just give the answer 6 

and we will move on to the next question.  If 7 

it's in the record, you know, maybe somebody 8 

can find out where it is, and then we can move 9 

on.  I mean, if we are going to have to push 10 

to get simple answers, it is going to take a 11 

lot longer. 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think he is asking 13 

questions of someone whose involvement in the 14 

project has been one year going back. 15 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Then, his answer 16 

could be, "I don't know."  I mean, 17 

let's -- sometimes it is just easier to go ahead 18 

and give the answer.  And if it's something you 19 

can find, say you can find it, say you can't 20 

find it. 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  We'll provide it for 1 

the record. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And I'll be, 3 

frankly, honest again, Mr. Otten.  And I 4 

appreciate that, Commissioner May.  You want 5 

to ask questions that are going to help this 6 

body. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm trying to. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And keep us from 9 

reading what is up here.  You want to ask those 10 

questions to give us -- so we can sway to your 11 

position.  Okay?  That's what you are trying 12 

to do through cross-examination. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  And just so we're clear 14 

on this, my understanding is the amenities are 15 

what you are trying to balance during these 16 

hearings.  The amenities, in terms of the MOUs 17 

I saw, are signed with various LLCs.  So -- 18 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Here's the 19 

thing.  I don't want to get into how the 20 

amenities are done. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  They are only as good 1 

as -- 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  What I want you to 3 

do, Mr. Otten, I want you to ask the question, 4 

you know, and as Commissioner May said, the 5 

applicant will answer it.  If not able to, when 6 

you come up and do your presentation, you can 7 

present it to us at that time.   8 

  And I'm actually not going to 9 

interrupt anymore.  I want you to go ahead, so 10 

we can get through this process.  My goal is 11 

not to interrupt.  The only way I'm going to 12 

interrupt is if you force me to, or us. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'll try to ask yes or 14 

no questions. 15 

  For the record, is the -- is Brian 16 

Friedman in the room? 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Friedman is in the 18 

room.  He did not testify at the hearing. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And he is associated 20 

with this project, correct? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Friedman is 1 

associated with the project. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  He is one of the 3 

principals in the project? 4 

  MR. SELMAN:  He does not have any 5 

controlling interest in the project. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  And Mr. Matt Wexler, is 7 

he in the room for the record? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Wexler is in the 9 

room. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And he is involved in 11 

the project, correct? 12 

  MR. SELMAN:  Yes. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  For the record, 14 

who -- I'm sorry.  Can you say who -- I don't 15 

know if people know that on the transcript.  16 

Who just answered? 17 

  MR. SELMAN:  I represent the 18 

applicant.  I testified as the last hearing.  19 

My name is Jeremy Selman. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  And you are with? 21 
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  MR. SELMAN:  I am the applicant.  1 

I represent the applicant.  That's who I'm with. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And in terms of 3 

representing the applicant, how many meetings 4 

did you represent the applicant at in terms 5 

of -- in the community to discuss this project? 6 

  MR. SELMAN:  Members of the team 7 

have been at many meetings. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  And does "members of the 9 

team" include Matthew Wexler and Brian Friedman? 10 

  MR. SELMAN:  Yes. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  As of today, 12 

Marriott is on the applicant's website as 13 

the -- listed as hotel manager.  Is this still 14 

the case? 15 

  MR. SELMAN:  I don't believe it 16 

is -- Marriott is on the website. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  The question 18 

still holds.  Is Marriott still managing this 19 

hotel? 20 

  MR. SELMAN:  The hotel does not 21 
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exist.  We are before the Planning Commission 1 

to get approval on a hotel.  Marriott is no 2 

longer affiliated with the project as of today. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so that changed 4 

today?  When did Marriott no longer -- I mean, 5 

it's on the website as of right now.  We can 6 

look it up.  It's under the FAQ section of the 7 

website. 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, the -- 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  I printed it out. 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- witness has 11 

said -- has given an answer to the question. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  I'll move on. 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  And we object to the 14 

relevancy of the question. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Irrelevant.  Let's 18 

go to the next question, and you can show us 19 

the website when you do your presentation. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't the feasibility 21 
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of this project directly tied to who is operating 1 

it? 2 

  MR. SELMAN:  The operator is not 3 

directly relevant in every situation.  And in 4 

this particular case, it is -- it is the -- it 5 

is the sponsorship group, which includes the 6 

Sydell Group, that is more relevant than the 7 

operator.  The operator has not yet been 8 

identified. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And why is that the 10 

case?  Why is the sponsor more relevant than 11 

the operator? 12 

  MR. SELMAN:  I have not testified 13 

to that.  It is not really of relevance here. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  You just testified to 15 

it now. 16 

  MR. SELMAN:  That wasn't testimony. 17 

 It was responding to a question that you asked. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is that not testimony, 19 

when you respond to -- 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Next question.  He 21 
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is answering your questions.  You are the one 1 

asking the questions; he's answering questions. 2 

 Next question. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm trying to 4 

understand the feasibility, because that 5 

is -- that's in the record. 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, we had 7 

an expert witness that testified as to the 8 

feasibility of the hotel, the size of the hotel. 9 

 We had an economic consultant that testified 10 

as to all of that. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right.  And that's why 12 

I'm inquiring of such.  That's -- so it is on 13 

the record as just admitted by Mr. Glasgow.  14 

Okay.  I'll keep moving on. 15 

  Some of the initial submissions on 16 

the record at the Zoning Commission here were 17 

by the law firm Sullivan & Barros, correct? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That is correct. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Are they still working 20 

on this case?  Is that law firm still working 21 
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on this case? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That law firm filed 2 

in the record a withdrawal from the case, and 3 

we entered an appearance -- Holland & Knight. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And when was that, do 5 

you recall? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No, I do not recall 7 

offhand when that is.  But we can supply it for 8 

the record. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you.  And 10 

so Holland & Knight -- I just heard Holland & 11 

Knight has been hired to represent this case. 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We filed an 13 

appearance in the case. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Looking at the 15 

impact on the community here, are you aware that 16 

Adams Morgan has been known to be home to many 17 

working class families of a variety of 18 

backgrounds? 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't have any 20 

direct testimony with respect to that matter. 21 
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 We had testimony with respect to the PUD 1 

application. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  And your testimony 3 

speaks to how your project may or may not affect 4 

the residents of Adams Morgan, correct? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The testimony and the 6 

evidence of record was for those provisions 7 

within Chapter 24 that deal with the approval 8 

or denial as seen fit by the Zoning Commission 9 

for the PUD application that is in front of me. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, with that in mind, 11 

the surrounding 200 feet of this PUD, are you 12 

aware that there exists a diverse amount of 13 

families, and particularly in the buildings in 14 

the immediate vicinity of the proposed hotel? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think the land 16 

planner testified that there are apartment 17 

buildings in proximity to the project. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't -- 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  And then, there is 20 

also a commercial corridor along Columbia Road 21 
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and 18th Street. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  In particular to 2 

Champlain Street, isn't it true there are about 3 

50 or more immigrant families living in the 4 

apartments in that immediate vicinity? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, we have 6 

no knowledge as to whether the families are 7 

immigrants or not. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  That's your 9 

answer. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Next question. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it true that a 13 

couple of these families living next to and 14 

across the street from the proposed location 15 

received, for the first time, information from 16 

the applicant with regard to this hotel through 17 

delivery to their apartments on September 11th? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't know 19 

what -- we have no knowledge and didn't testify 20 

as to what people know with respect to the 21 
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community.  We did testify that there have been 1 

a number of outreaches and that there have been 2 

many community meetings over the years with 3 

respect to this project. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Speaking specifically 5 

to September 11th, there was a delivery to the 6 

apartments of the families -- of two of the 7 

families that live in the immediate vicinity 8 

on September 11th of the latest hotel plans. 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  And we do not 10 

know what they knew prior to September 11th. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it true that this 12 

was the first time any of these plan documents 13 

were translated in Spanish? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I believe that we will 15 

be submitting for the record in rebuttal a 16 

listing of numerous outreaches to the Hispanic 17 

community with dates, who was met with, and that 18 

type of thing.  But that was not part of the 19 

direct presentation, but we have that for 20 

rebuttal. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Let's take a 1 

look at these documents.  For the record, I'm 2 

looking at the Holland & Knight document dated 3 

September 10, 2012, regarding Zoning Commission 4 

Case 11-17.  This was what was delivered on 5 

September 11th to a couple of these families, 6 

correct?  This document? 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We had a listing of 8 

I think it was 35 individuals that were delivered 9 

copies of this document in response to the 10 

September 6th public hearing, as requested by 11 

the Commission. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  How many of 13 

those do you recall being -- living on -- how 14 

many of those do you recall living on Champlain 15 

Street in the immediate vicinity of this 16 

proposed -- 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can submit -- my 18 

secretary had a log of who we submitted the 19 

documents to, what addresses they received them 20 

at, and we can submit that for the record. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  And, first, we noticed 1 

that the term "Latino" or "Hispanic" was 2 

mentioned no less than seven times on this cover 3 

sheet.  Isn't that correct? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I'll have to read the 5 

cover sheet. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And at the prior 7 

hearing, you -- Mr. Glasgow, you expressed that 8 

the Office of Latino Affairs has written a letter 9 

in support of the project to this Commission? 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We submitted a letter 11 

to the record, as I recall.  I can get a copy 12 

of that letter out and read who it was from. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Before you do 14 

that, I guess -- 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No, I'd like to answer 16 

the question, if I may.  It's the Mayor's 17 

Commission on Latino Community Development, 18 

Roland Roebuck, Chairman, letter was dated -- it 19 

says updated September 6, 2012, was signed by 20 

him, should be in the record but I don't know 21 
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the exhibit number. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And is that what you 2 

meant by the letter from the Office of Latino 3 

Affairs? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's the letter 5 

that I was referring to, this one that I have 6 

in front of me now dated September 6, 2012. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mayor's Commission on 9 

Latino Community Development. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't it true there 11 

is an Exhibit 1-2-9, 129, that actually is a 12 

letter from the Office of Latino Affairs dated 13 

September 10, 2012? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't have that 15 

exhibit number memorized. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  There is that 17 

letter.  You might recall that letter 18 

states -- so you don't recall what that letter -- 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, I have 20 

been answering a number of questions just to 21 
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keep this moving.  I could have objected to 1 

every one of them.  We didn't testify as to any 2 

of that on our direct presentation.  I'm looking 3 

for instruction as how best to proceed and keep 4 

this hearing moving. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let me just let you 6 

know, Exhibit 129 we do have.  I think we got 7 

it tonight.  So we do have Exhibit 129. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  We are going to read 10 

it, so let's move to the next question. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And, remember, we 13 

deal with land use.  If you just -- 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Sorry. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You're going the 16 

long way to get to land use. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 18 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  We deal with land 19 

use.  How we got to some of these events and 20 

who did what and the ANC meeting and the 21 
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community meeting, you just give us your 1 

testimony on that.  You don't need to -- if you 2 

want us to -- 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  I wanted to -- I guess 4 

I wanted to ask that question, because at the 5 

last hearing it was, you know, stated pretty 6 

unequivocally that a letter from the Office of 7 

Latino Affairs in support of the project had 8 

come through, and it was -- 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  We have your new 10 

letter, so -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- or somebody's 13 

new letter -- Ms. Olivas, Director.  We have 14 

that letter. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Mr. Olivas? 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Olivas.   17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you, Chair 18 

Hood. 19 

  Your cover letter mentions a Latino 20 

Summit, correct?  A Latino Community Summit on 21 
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page 2, number 8. 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  That's 2 

mentioned in the letter. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Do you recall what 4 

newspaper this was advertised in and when? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I did not conduct the 6 

summit.  This is a cover letter as to what was 7 

submitted under cover of this firm.  The law 8 

firm didn't conduct a lot of these.  We didn't 9 

prepare the architectural drawings.  There is 10 

a lot of information -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  For the record, though, 12 

your signature is on this cover letter, correct? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct.  It 14 

is a submission of information and a description 15 

of the information to the Commission.  It 16 

doesn't purport that the law firm prepared it, 17 

other than the cover letter. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Perhaps anybody 19 

on the panel can answer this, then.  The 20 

applicant, isn't it true that neither the 21 
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applicant nor any of these partners listed on 1 

page 2 of the cover letter specifically invited 2 

by mail, phone, or flyer any of the Latino 3 

families most directly impacted by the project 4 

living in the community there right on Champlain 5 

Street? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I object to the 7 

characterization of who was invited.  We can 8 

see whether we have a witness that can respond, 9 

or we can respond for the record. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  I was 11 

specifically asking about mail or phone or flyer 12 

to these people directly on Champlain Street. 13 

  It seems like the rest of this 14 

document is an agreement with the RCNA group 15 

and an Office of Planning report, correct? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There are Exhibits A 17 

through E, if the Commission members have a copy 18 

of that in front of them and they can see what 19 

the exhibits are.  There is also a memorandum 20 

of understanding between the Adams Morgan Church 21 
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Hotel, LLC, and the Greater Washington Hispanic 1 

Chamber of Commerce. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Looking at -- 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think we are still 4 

on the September 10th, 2012 -- 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Yeah.  Exhibit 6 

121. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  The RCNA 8 

group, that's the Reed-Cooke Neighborhood 9 

Association, correct? 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And they have entered 12 

into an agreement with the applicant regarding 13 

this project, correct? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Correct.  That is 15 

attached and in the record. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And is the applicant, 17 

anybody on the panel, aware if the RCNA 18 

specifically contacted any of the residents 19 

living on Champlain Street most directly 20 

impacted? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  The applicant has no 1 

knowledge one way or the other. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  And are you aware if the 3 

Office of Planning, and their representatives, 4 

have reached out to any of these directly 5 

impacted families living on Champlain Street? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  You are asking that 7 

to the applicant? 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes.  I'm asking you, 9 

because I understand your testimony was that 10 

you worked extensively with the Office of 11 

Planning, and perhaps that -- 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  We worked -- 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- came up. 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We have met with the 15 

Office of Planning on many occasions. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.   17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  If you are not aware 18 

of his question -- answers, he said he wanted 19 

yes or no answers.  So to help expedite this, 20 

in that case, if you are not sure what Office 21 
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of Planning did, the answer is no. 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Well, we are not able 2 

to answer for the Office of Planning. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Does that help you, 4 

Mr. Otten? 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes.  Yes, absolutely. 6 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  And I guess I would 8 

also -- my questions are for anybody on the panel 9 

that would see fit to answer.  Okay. 10 

  So back to RCNA for a moment, who 11 

was the key point of contact, both for the 12 

applicant and the RCNA, in this agreement? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 14 

to that.  There are documents of record. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  So, but you have 16 

testified that you are in an agreement with them. 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The applicant has 18 

testified to that. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And who are the 20 

signatories on that agreement? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  This Mr. Jake 1 

Lamstein signed for Adams Morgan Hotel owner. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Jake Lamstein, Adams 3 

Morgan Hotel owner.  And what is Adams Morgan 4 

Hotel owner?  Is that another LLC involved in 5 

this matter? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  It is the applicant. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Okay.  And for 8 

RCNA, who was the signatory on that? 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. William Simpson, 10 

President. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And was there 12 

any knowledge or information shared from Mr. 13 

Lamstein about the discussion around the 14 

agreement with others in the team, on the 15 

applicant team? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, I 17 

object to the question. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The document speaks 20 

for itself. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  I'll move on. 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's the agreement. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'll move on. 3 

  Okay.  Back to the plans for a 4 

moment. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  We are getting 6 

ready to get where we need to be.  Let's get 7 

to the plans. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  I want to get at 9 

the -- there were comments from the Zoning 10 

Commission at the September 6th hearing that 11 

the plans needed a lot of work, correct?  Do 12 

you recall that, the September 6th hearing? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  That is 14 

correct, and that's why we filed plans dated 15 

September 10th. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Very good.  And in 17 

terms of the September 10th filing, in terms 18 

of actual content, not design specs of the hotel, 19 

what are the key differences between the plans 20 

submitted on the 6th and on the 10th, in terms 21 
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of this packet of information? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Steve, do you want to 2 

answer just to -- 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  If you could hit 4 

some of the key differences.  I know we 5 

probably -- we have done this, but if you could 6 

hit the key differences right quick. 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  With respect to like 8 

the changes in the design, the things to address 9 

the comments from the Commission. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Actually, not to the 11 

design.  My question was just in terms of 12 

content, like what -- were there additional -- it 13 

is -- it would seem to us that the only addition 14 

between the September 6th and the September 10th 15 

actual packet of plans was the renderings found 16 

in the appendix.  But, otherwise, everything 17 

seemed to be the same.  Is that correct? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There were a number 19 

of requests from the Commission that we heard 20 

on September 6th, and we revised the plans 21 
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accordingly.  There were numerous sheets within 1 

the plans that were revised.  We can provide 2 

for the record a listing of the -- of sheets 3 

that had changes, but they are very numerous. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Appreciate 5 

that.  Thank you. 6 

  Just to be clear, though, the -- a 7 

big chunk of the addition to these plans from 8 

September 6th to September 10th was this section 9 

called the appendix, pages -- Appendix 1 to 10 

Exhibit A -- 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten? 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Correct. 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  He just said he was 14 

going to provide the numbered sheets.  So that 15 

is actually a duplicate question. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm going to ask you 18 

not to answer that.  Move on.  You're going to 19 

get that when we -- when we all get that 20 

information. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let's go to the next 2 

question. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sounds good.  Thank 4 

you. 5 

  Okay.  Just looking at the appendix 6 

for a moment, particular to Exhibit -- I'm sorry, 7 

to -- we are looking at the September 10th plans, 8 

and A-7, that's the north elevation at this 9 

point.  That's the current submission, correct, 10 

A-7? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Go ahead. 12 

  MR. POLO:  That's correct. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And wasn't the 14 

public told by the applicant from December 2010 15 

until the summer, this past summer, that there 16 

was no possible way to bring the size of this 17 

hotel down? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I'm going to ask the 19 

clients not to respond to that question.  We 20 

have -- we made our presentation, we had our 21 
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expert testimony on a number of 1 

different -- before this Commission, last time 2 

with respect to the economic analysis, how the 3 

building was dealt with.  There were a number 4 

of questions that came from the Commission on 5 

that.  They were answered. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  After the 7 

September setdown -- I mean, I'm sorry, 8 

November 2011 setdown hearing, and the 9 

subsequent Office of Planning report and the 10 

Zoning Commission comments, isn't it true that 11 

team member Matthew Wexler said publicly that 12 

there is just no way to bring the size of this 13 

hotel down, it's not financially feasible? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't -- Mr. 15 

Wexler didn't testify at the hearing. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So this size 17 

change, why did it happen?  You know, if the 18 

project was set down -- let me understand the 19 

timeline.  The project was set down in November 20 

of 2011.  Between then and now, the recent 21 
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changes happened in August, correct, like the 1 

first set of changes from the setdown report? 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  I think the 3 

record reflects that the 20-day filing had an 4 

82-foot building.  The Commission set 5 

the -- with a split vote, the Commission set 6 

the building down, I think it was either 90 or 7 

92 feet, and then there was the 82-foot building 8 

that was submitted in August, and there was 9 

additional discussions with the Office of 10 

Planning, Reed-Cooke Neighborhood Association, 11 

and others with respect to the height of the 12 

building. 13 

  We received that there was thought 14 

that the building, if it could be lowered, that 15 

the building should be lowered, and the building 16 

was lowered.   17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  18 

Essentially, you have the same number of rooms, 19 

correct, as where you were at? 20 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There has been some 21 
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loss in the number of units.  I believe Mr. 1 

Selman testified as to that. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  So it went from how many 3 

rooms to how many rooms? 4 

  MR. SELMAN:   It went from 227 rooms 5 

to 220 rooms. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  And I believe, also, 8 

the FAR at one point in time was about 4.5, and 9 

now it is under four. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so the number of 11 

rooms essentially stayed the same.  How about 12 

the size of the gym?  Is that essentially the 13 

same, the spa? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The spa is smaller 15 

than originally submitted.  16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Do you know by 17 

approximately how many square feet? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can submit the 19 

change in the size of the spa for the record. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  How about 21 
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of the meeting rooms, was that shrunk in size? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can compare the 2 

square footages and submit for the record 3 

whether there has been a change and, if there 4 

has been, what it is. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  And for the restaurant 6 

and club and bars as well? 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, there 8 

is -- there are a number of questions that are 9 

just reiterations of things that are in the 10 

record. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm asking about the 12 

size here of the -- 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The size was on the 14 

plans.  We had a building that was about 4.5 15 

FAR, and now it's 3.99 FAR.  There are changes 16 

to that building. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, yeah.  I was just 18 

trying to gauge what shrunk.  But in terms of 19 

the number of rooms, it's essentially the same 20 

is what I'm hearing.  Is that correct?  Several 21 
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rooms less. 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes, 227 to 220. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  How was this possible? 3 

 How did you keep essentially the same number 4 

of rooms but yet bring it down in size? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We made a number 6 

of -- we have testified that a number of aspects 7 

of the hotel were changed. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  And one of these aspects 9 

is that you brought it closer to the church, 10 

correct?  Brought the main body of the hotel 11 

closer to -- 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  We testified 13 

that at one point in time the building was 28 14 

feet from the church, and now it's 15 feet from 15 

the church.  I think that's in the record and 16 

was clearly testified to by the architects. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And we can see 18 

that on Appendix A-10 and A-11, it looks like. 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it true that one 21 
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of the key conclusions after the many HPRB 1 

hearings and the staff of HPO was that the height 2 

of the building was less a concern, but the 3 

priority was the separation between the church 4 

and the tower? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 6 

to that. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  But that's on the 8 

record, correct? 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't believe that 10 

that is on the record in this proceeding. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't the HPRB hearing 12 

on the record?  I mean, the -- 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let me ask -- 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- HPO staff report? 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm going to have 16 

to follow HPRB a little more.  Obviously, you've 17 

been to the HPRB.  Do you mention what we say 18 

at the Zoning Commission at HPRB hearings? 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Say that again. 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I just want you to 21 
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focus.  I want you to focus.  We're not at an 1 

HPRB hearing.  We're at a Zoning Commission 2 

hearing. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sure.  I guess it's 4 

kind of like robbing Peter to pay Paul, though, 5 

you know?  There was -- the height wasn't 6 

contended with, but the separation was 7 

important. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Well, here's the 9 

thing.  Instead of bringing up what happened 10 

at -- mention that, how did we get to this point? 11 

 And then leave it alone and they'll answer that. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Very good. 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  As opposed to 14 

bringing an HPRB -- I guess going 15 

roundabout -- asking a zoning question. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  So what is going to -- so 17 

it is going to be required -- if Zoning were 18 

to approve this, if the Commission were to 19 

approve this, it would have to go back to an 20 

HPRB hearing, to the HPRB, to get approval of 21 
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shrinking that distance, correct? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We are going to be 2 

taking the revised design, and pursuant to 3 

request at the last hearing, the Commission did 4 

request that we -- how we were proceeding on 5 

our timeline.   6 

  With respect to HPRB, we have made 7 

a filing to go to HPRB.  And when their docket 8 

permits, we will be in front of the Historic 9 

Preservation Review Board. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  So at this point they 11 

haven't set a meeting date, correct? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We haven't gotten an 13 

official meeting date.  They -- I know that they 14 

are formulating an agenda, and we will have 15 

official word as to whether we are on or not 16 

on the October 25th agenda, or we will be on 17 

a November agenda. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Just looking 19 

back in the September 10th plans again, 20 

A-17 -- let's look at that rendering for a 21 
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moment.  Isn't part of the reason why you have 1 

been able to retain the same number of rooms 2 

is because there is absolutely no setbacks from 3 

the sidewalk and from the surrounding property? 4 

  MR. POLO:  Can you repeat the 5 

question?  No setbacks from where? 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Let me point to 7 

one -- I'll get to the questions.  Let me -- do 8 

you see -- for the record there is this rendering 9 

on A-17, page A-17, of the September 10th plans 10 

shows a rendering of the hotel building on 11 

Champlain Street looking northwest, correct? 12 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  And there is a -- it 14 

looks like a BMW coming out from the porte 15 

cochere, crossing the sidewalk there, with a 16 

gentleman standing there listening to a phone. 17 

 And there is a couple kind of walking on the 18 

sidewalk there, correct? 19 

  MR. POLO:  Yes, in the rendering. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  They are kind of 21 
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meandering there, and they are kind of -- the 1 

woman looks like she is twisting around this 2 

tree planter, almost as if the sidewalk -- I 3 

mean, it is almost as if two people could not 4 

walk on that sidewalk there, correct? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, we have 6 

a site plan, and we can dimension it for the 7 

record as to what the sidewalk width is there, 8 

and there are substantial setbacks on the 9 

property, particularly around the historic 10 

church. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  But at this point, on 12 

Champlain Street looking northwest, there are 13 

no buffers or setbacks -- there is no buffer 14 

between the hotel tower and the immediately 15 

adjacent property to the south, correct?  There 16 

is no setback there. 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think the site plan 18 

depicts that the property is face on line with 19 

the building to the south. 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Is it of the same 21 
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character of the other buildings in the 1 

neighborhood?  Is that what you are asking? 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm just trying to 3 

get -- 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Are you trying to 5 

say this one is out of character of other 6 

buildings?  I mean, I'm just trying 7 

to -- because it seems to me that the lady -- you 8 

know, a picture is worth a thousand words.  So 9 

it seems to me about the lady walking down the 10 

street.  I don't know.  It's just -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  That building comes 12 

right up to the sidewalk. 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  But, again, Mr. 14 

Glasgow has already said he has the dimensions. 15 

 So that's what we need to be looking at. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  But the question is, 17 

there is no setback from the sidewalk. 18 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So is that what you 19 

were -- that is your point. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes, that's the 21 
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question. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Right.  So your 2 

question is, is there -- 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  A setback -- 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:   Okay. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- from the sidewalk 6 

along Champlain Street. 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  On the -- on Champlain 8 

Street, the building is face on line, and the 9 

existing building that is there right now is 10 

face on line. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  That's the 12 

answer. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm sorry.  What 14 

existing building? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  City Paper Building. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And the 17 

building -- well, you can't quite kind of see 18 

it, just to the south, has a small apartment 19 

complex, correct?  Townhouse?  Two and a half 20 

story townhouse or so? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that has a front 2 

yard setback to it, correct? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Do you have any 5 

renderings without these beautiful fall trees 6 

that -- so we can really see this building on 7 

this street? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We had been requested 9 

by the Commission over time to have the site 10 

lines and the elevations taken from a number 11 

of different perspectives, which we did.  We 12 

have numerous perspectives of this building. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  It would be great if we 14 

could see that. 15 

  Okay.  And so, again, this is all 16 

kind of tailing from the question of, how did 17 

you shrink the size of this building but keep 18 

the same number of rooms.  Isn't it the case 19 

that between the August submission and this 20 

submission you shifted more the weight of the 21 
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building towards this southeast corner on 1 

Champlain Street? 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, we have 3 

answered several times that the building has 4 

also decreased in FAR from 4.5 to 3.99 FAR. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  That doesn't answer the 6 

question.  I'm not -- 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's the answer. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- asking about FAR.   9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's the answer. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  But I'm not asking about 11 

FAR. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, what is 13 

your question? 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  I have an exhibit I 15 

could share.  It might -- 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Just tell us where 17 

you are. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  I am just trying to -- 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And the architect 20 

could be looking at it, so we can answer 21 
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questions. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So on page 75 of 2 

the August submission, versus page 75 of the -- 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Why are we -- let 4 

me ask you something.  Can we go with what is 5 

before us?  Is that -- 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, I'm just trying 7 

to understand how they -- 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Is that still 9 

before us? 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes.  Because it shows 11 

how the building has shifted but retained the 12 

same number of rooms.  And that -- I have that 13 

as an exhibit.  I 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And your point?  15 

What are you trying to get -- to explain to help 16 

the Commission to see? 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  I am just -- I'm trying 18 

to affirm that.  Part of it is I -- I want to 19 

affirm this, and I have the two renderings that 20 

I would like to introduce into the record if 21 
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possible.  It is them two together, that we can 1 

look at it together, and I have copies for 2 

everybody. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And you know what? 4 

 You'll be able to introduce that when you do 5 

your presentation.  Right now you are doing 6 

cross-examination. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right.  So -- 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  But you're not 9 

doing cross and a presentation.  You're just 10 

doing cross. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Can I give this to them, 12 

so -- 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  No.  I want you -- 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- they can refer to 15 

this? 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I want you to finish 17 

your cross-examination.  If that's -- you are 18 

crossing them on something.  Is that something 19 

that they have? 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 21 
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  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  That they provided? 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And you are going 3 

to give them their materials.  Can't you just 4 

give them the page number? 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  I can.   6 

  So on the August 15th, 2012 7 

submission, page 75, it looks like there is one, 8 

two, three, four, five stories above the garage. 9 

 But in the September 10th, 2012, I see one, 10 

two, three, four, five, six stories above the 11 

garage.  Is that correct? 12 

  MR. POLO:  That is correct. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So, in essence, 14 

between August -- between August 15th and 15 

September 10th, both renderings on the same page 16 

of both submissions, the building has shifted 17 

to the southeast corner in terms of height, and 18 

it has grown in height from August to September 19 

most closest, most furthest south on Champlain 20 

Street. 21 
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  MR. POLO:  Just those two bays, one 1 

floor, right. 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Otherwise, the 3 

building is shorter, as has been testified to 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So to the 5 

measurements, it has been quite difficult for 6 

the general public to understand the 7 

measurements on this.  Let me see if I can -- we 8 

can walk through that and perhaps you can help 9 

us understand that through our questions. 10 

  Page 49 of the most recent 11 

submission, September 10, 2012 -- oh, I'm sorry. 12 

 That's not right.  Where is it?  Oh, it's 13 

page -- I'm sorry.  I apologize.  It's page 50. 14 

 Page 50 of the current submission is the -- for 15 

the record, that's the east elevation, correct? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Go ahead and answer. 17 

 Here.  It's this page. 18 

  MR. POLO:  Page 50? 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 20 

  MR. POLO:  Is the east elevation. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Great.  Thank you.  1 

And this is the side of the hotel where the porte 2 

cochere is, correct? 3 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And this is the side 5 

where hotel guests will unload from their cabs, 6 

limos, sedans, et cetera, into the hotel where 7 

the registration desk is located, correct? 8 

  MR. POLO:  No.  The loading is at 9 

the front. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  So hotel guests will not 11 

be driven to this point on Champlain Street? 12 

  MR. POLO:  They will be directed to 13 

the front, the cab stands in the front. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  How about people coming 15 

by way of car or limo or sedan? 16 

  MR. POLO:  The valet is at the front 17 

of the hotel. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So the valet 19 

will take them to -- the car to this point on 20 

Champlain Street. 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  The traffic 1 

consultant -- 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  That's okay.  Let 3 

me --  let's move on.  The main thing about this 4 

is the elevation.  I just wanted to verify where 5 

the porte cochere was. 6 

  Part of the reason why we're having 7 

a problem with this is there is no scale -- 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  What is the 9 

question? 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  The question is, 11 

is there a scale on these elevations? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The elevation is 13 

dimensioned on the left-hand side of Sheet 50. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  But there is no scale 15 

to help somebody measure, let's say, the footage 16 

from below the ground floor level, for example. 17 

 And then, the line south of the -- the line 18 

below the ground floor level.  I mean, how would 19 

we get to that?  How would we understand how 20 

tall that southeast corner is? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  The drawing is 1 

dimensioned.  There is not a scale on the 2 

drawing, but it is just dimensioned.   3 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't it the case 4 

also that without the scale, and without 5 

the -- well, isn't it the case that the street 6 

elevation line, which is by where this building 7 

is being measured from in terms of zoning 8 

tonight, correct, the street elevation line, 9 

the one that has a green star on this page? 10 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that line, just so 12 

we understand, does not actually completely cut 13 

across this entire elevation, correct? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We have a point of 15 

measurement consistent with the zoning 16 

regulations for a building that fronts on more 17 

than one street. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  I understand that.  But 19 

that line that depicts that point of elevation 20 

does not actually extend all the way across this 21 
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east elevation, correct? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  The line doesn't 2 

extend.  We have our point of measurement. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, it's hard to 4 

get -- wouldn't you agree that it's hard to get 5 

a point of measurement of the southeast corner 6 

without that line extending all the way to the 7 

farthest southeast corner? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  That's not the 9 

point of measurement.  The regulations provide 10 

the point of measurement, and we have taken it, 11 

and it's a matter of record.  It's off of Euclid 12 

Street. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Perhaps you are missing 14 

my question.  We have the point of elevation. 15 

 We have agreed to that.  It's the green star. 16 

 That line cutting across the elevation does 17 

not completely cross this entire diagram. 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Agreed. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  So the point furthest 20 

south on this diagram, furthest south on 21 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 69 

Champlain Street, on this diagram, does not have 1 

the street elevation measurement on it. 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  It doesn't. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Wouldn't you agree that 4 

makes it kind of difficult to determine how -- 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  I don't agree 6 

with that. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Well, perhaps we 8 

can -- perhaps we can work on this together, 9 

then, because we are having a hard time 10 

understanding it. 11 

  I would like to submit a worksheet 12 

for us to look at to understand these heights, 13 

because we really are having a hard time 14 

understanding the heights. 15 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  I think it 16 

has been said that now you are asking questions, 17 

and then you submit when you testify. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  But I can't get the 19 

answers until we ask -- I am trying to ask them 20 

about the heights at the southeast corner. 21 
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  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  And they 1 

said they are going to provide a lot of this 2 

information in their rebuttal.  So can you 3 

continue, please? 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  I can. 5 

  Okay.  For argument's sake, then, 6 

if we were to number the bays as you referred 7 

to them, these are -- it looks like there is 8 

one, two, three, four, five bays in this diagram, 9 

correct?  Is that right? 10 

  MR. POLO:  Can you tell us what page 11 

you're on again?  It's the same page? 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Page 13 

50, yes, the east elevation. 14 

  MR. POLO:  I just want to understand 15 

what you are really asking.  Five bays moving 16 

down the site? 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  In the motif -- the A, 18 

B, C motif. 19 

  MR. POLO:  From the church 20 

to -- yeah. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  You know, kind of the 1 

separate -- 2 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- and distinct.  It 4 

says one, two, three, four, five. 5 

  MR. POLO:  That's right. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And just for 7 

argument's sake, number five being the most 8 

southern on Champlain Street, okay, does that -- 9 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- for argument's sake? 11 

 From the street elevation, how tall is the 12 

highest point on that fifth bay? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  From which elevation? 14 

 The point of measurement, which is Euclid 15 

Street? 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes.  From the point of 17 

measurement on Euclid Street, isn't that 61 feet 18 

and nine inches? 19 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so from the street, 21 
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from the actual street on Champlain Street 1 

there, somebody walking by there, how tall is 2 

it then? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can provide that 4 

for the record. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Now, just doing 6 

a comparison to the August east elevation, to 7 

the August submission, in that fifth bay, isn't 8 

the street elevation height 52 feet nine inches? 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can provide that 10 

for the record.  But we question the relevance. 11 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  Yes.  I 12 

just want to say that we are looking at the 13 

September 10th plan.  That is the plan that we 14 

will be acting on, not the earlier ones. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  But that plan was in 16 

response to the earlier plans, right? 17 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  Well, it 18 

was in response to comments made by the, you 19 

know, Historic Preservation Board as well as 20 

ourselves.  So I guess I don't understand where 21 
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you are coming from, to be honest with you. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  It goes back to the 2 

question about a shifting of the massing of the 3 

building.  It seems from August to September 4 

the height at that corner has actually gotten 5 

bigger.  So, and it is right next to a 6 

residential community, low scale.  So I just 7 

wanted to affirm the heights, so we can make 8 

that argument later.  Does that make sense? 9 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  So do you have 10 

the information that you need?  Because this -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  No.  He said he had to 12 

provide it. 13 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Okay. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  So I'm looking for the 15 

height from the street elevation on August for 16 

that fifth bay, the most southern bay. 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Well, we said that we 18 

would provide for the record for the question 19 

that you had before that, if the -- but the plan 20 

from August is not the plan before the 21 
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Commission.  1 

  MR. OTTEN:  But that's in response 2 

to the comments made by the Commission, correct, 3 

and the Office of Planning? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The plan that was 5 

submitted in September is the most recent 6 

response to comments from the Office of 7 

Planning, RCNA, and the Commission. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So -- 9 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  And just to 10 

clarify, the whole building has already been 11 

reduced one story. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So also, you are 13 

going to provide the measurement of that fifth 14 

bay from the actual -- not the zoning measured 15 

street elevation, but the actual Champlain 16 

Street, correct?  From Champlain Street -- 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  As if you're standing 19 

there at the fifth bay. 20 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  We will provide 21 
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the measurement of the fifth bay from Champlain 1 

Street. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so it is pretty 3 

obvious here, though, that as you walk 4 

down -- just looking at page 51, the next page, 5 

as you walk down Champlain Street, there is a 6 

decline from north to south, correct? 7 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so, therefore, the 9 

72-foot height at the front of this hotel tower 10 

most close to the church, walking on -- let me 11 

start -- 72 feet at this most northern point 12 

on the hotel tower, correct? 13 

  MR. POLO:  At the roof. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  At the roof. 15 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so as you walk on 17 

the street level, as you walk south down 18 

Champlain Street, the building is actually 19 

gaining in height because you are 20 

declining -- you are actually walking down a 21 
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slope, correct? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's not 2 

necessarily true, because when you go to -- 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  From the street. 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- the last bay, that 5 

bay is cut down a story. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right.  But the -- 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  At shown on page 51. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Bays four, three, two, 9 

and one, as you descend down Columbia Road, it 10 

is essentially from the street gaining height, 11 

correct? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can submit all of 13 

the numbers that the Commission feels that they 14 

want to direct us to submit on that. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And is it 16 

possible that you can include a scale on these 17 

elevations? 18 

  MR. POLO:  Yes, we can do that.  19 

We'll give you a scale. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Isn't it true 21 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 77 

that Exhibit 4H on the record showed a prior 1 

feasibility study that showed this hotel was 2 

feasible at 50 rooms less, feasible at 174 rooms? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I'm not aware of any 4 

such feasibility study.  Mr. Smart prepared a 5 

feasibility study, submitted it for the record, 6 

and testified as to it. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  But just for the 8 

record, that's Exhibit 4H, that prior 9 

feasibility study showing that it was feasible 10 

at 174 rooms. 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We don't concede that 12 

statement. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Fine.  Looking at 14 

Exhibit 132, did the applicant's feasibility 15 

study take into account the 5,000-plus hotel 16 

rooms within 15 minutes' walking distance? 17 

  MR. SMART:  This is Eric Smart.  We 18 

submitted the question, at least the report that 19 

the question has addressed, I believe.  Would 20 

you repeat the question? 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Yes.  Did your 1 

feasibility study take into account the 5,000 2 

hotel rooms that are within 15 minutes' walking 3 

distance as serious competition? 4 

  MR. SMART:  No. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  And are you aware that 6 

these hotels are much closer to Metro stations? 7 

  MR. SMART:  I am aware there are 8 

some that are closer to the Metro stations.  9 

I don't know which you're speaking of, but yes. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't it true that 11 

the economic feasibility is tied to potential 12 

profit? 13 

  MR. SMART:  The economic 14 

feasibility that we worked with is to make the 15 

project so it can be financed. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And the financing is 17 

based on a showing of return of investment, 18 

correct? 19 

  MR. SMART:  We did not evaluate the 20 

return on investment. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Doesn't that affect how 1 

the general public can determine how feasible 2 

this project is at various room volumes? 3 

  MR. SMART:  Excuse me? 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Understanding the 5 

return on investment, that pressure point, 6 

doesn't that affect how -- not knowing that, 7 

doesn't that affect how the general public can 8 

determine how feasible this project is at 9 

various room numbers, the size of the building? 10 

  MR. SMART:  I don't think the 11 

return -- the general public understands return 12 

on investment, if that's your question. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Why do you feel 14 

that? 15 

  MR. SMART:  I don't mean any 16 

disrespect, but it's a -- it's one dimension 17 

of understanding the project feasibility.  We 18 

restricted our analysis to comparing the 19 

feasibility of the project as submitted against 20 

a project that would have fewer rooms. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  And did your 1 

feasibility study look at a hotel with 174 rooms? 2 

  MR. SMART:  No, it did not. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you. 4 

  Sorry I'm skipping around here.  I 5 

just wanted to look back at the plans, just to 6 

confirm some things.  I read through this.  I 7 

didn't see one interior rendering.  Is that 8 

correct?  One interior rendering of the hotel, 9 

what it might look like inside? 10 

  MR. POLO:  That's correct. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And there seems to be 12 

very limited contextual renderings of what the 13 

building looks like and the surrounding 14 

community.  Isn't that correct? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We disagree with that 16 

characterization.  We did a number of 17 

evaluations and studies, and they're in the 18 

record. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  But in terms of actual 20 

renderings of the hotel sitting in the context 21 
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of this community, I see faceless buildings 1 

next -- one building next to it on, like, page 2 

A-3. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Hold on.  Let me 4 

say that I think you and I might agree on this 5 

one.  If you can point us to it, and if you don't 6 

have it, if you could get that for us.  If you 7 

could just point us to it, it's -- if you could 8 

just point me to it now, because I want to see 9 

it, too. 10 

  MR. POLO:  Many of the renderings 11 

are in the appendix.  We can -- 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  If you look at, like, 13 

A -- Mr. Chairman, A-19, we have the building 14 

superimposed, go to A-19, A-21, A-23, all of 15 

those we have the buildings superimposed both 16 

as setdown by the Zoning Commission and as 17 

presently proposed.  We have it from all of 18 

those different angles. 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  There it is. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Are there 21 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 82 

any -- 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Sometimes we all 2 

need a little help, including me, so -- 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sure. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- I understand on 5 

that, Mr. Otten.  You and I actually agree on 6 

that one. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  I hope we agree on more 8 

than that. 9 

  Are there -- these are kind of -- the 10 

renderings, Mr. Glasgow, that you just pointed 11 

out are kind of distant.  Are there any 12 

renderings of the -- of the hotel as it sits 13 

on Champlain Street next to some of the buildings 14 

on Champlain Street? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We have A-23.  It 16 

shows a view that was requested from the 17 

Commission down on the southern part of 18 

Champlain Street, looking all the way up 19 

Champlain. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  And these buildings 21 
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here, how -- they seem to be about 50 feet tall, 1 

would you say?  Less than 50?  I don't know. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let me just say 3 

this.  Mr. Otten, the issue is, they do have 4 

it.  They have provided what you asked for.  5 

That's the main thing. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, this is -- I mean, 7 

how far south of -- on Champlain Street is this 8 

from the hotel location?  Is it about half a 9 

mile or -- 10 

  MR. GELLATLY:  The rendering was 11 

done from just north of Kalorama. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Just north.  So -- 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Right.  The 14 

Commission had asked that -- at one point during 15 

the proceedings that we go to the southernmost 16 

part of Champlain Street and to have a rendering 17 

that went up Champlain Street, went north on 18 

Champlain, and we did that. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  But are there any 20 

renderings of this thing sitting next to or 21 
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closer -- further up north on Champlain Street 1 

next -- 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No, there are not. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Is that 4 

possible? Can we get those? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We submitted it with 6 

the Commission request. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  I notice there 8 

is no perspective to show how the hotel tower 9 

may appear over 18th Street businesses from -- 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes, there is a 11 

document.  That was one of the ones -- 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  On 18th Street? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- I referenced. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't that one 15 

from -- that's 18th and Columbia.  But is there 16 

any from further south on 18th Street where the 17 

historic district is? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can't -- we took 19 

that perspective where it is that -- where you 20 

could see the building.  We didn't want to 21 
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submit a perspective where you couldn't see the 1 

building and then get criticized for that. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, it is hard to 3 

determine if you can see it or not if we don't 4 

have that on the record. 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can submit another 6 

drawing for the record that was taken further 7 

down 18th Street.  It's the view from Belmont 8 

and 18th looking northeast and -- can you see 9 

the building at all?  I'm not -- I can submit 10 

that. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Submit it when you 12 

do your rebuttal. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you. 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Along with his 15 

stuff. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And -- 17 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Well, 18 

there is also A-19.  I don't know if that makes 19 

a difference, but -- 20 

  MR. SELMAN:  That's along Columbia. 21 
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  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  It's along 1 

Columbia.  2 

  MR. SELMAN:  Right. 3 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  But it 4 

shows the scale of the building adjacent -- to 5 

the adjacent structures. 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes, sir. 7 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, we 8 

are -- I'm not timing you.  I'm just keeping 9 

track of time.  We are going on one hour of 10 

cross-examination.  I just want to know about 11 

how many more questions you think you may have 12 

or how much more time you need.  How much more 13 

time do you think you -- 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  I really want to get -- I 15 

don't know.  It's hard to determine.  Part of 16 

it is the answers, but I will try to work through 17 

as quick as I can. 18 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Ms. 19 

Schellin -- and I will ask the audience to bear 20 

with us -- we may need to look for a third night, 21 
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the way that you're going.  I just want you to 1 

know that's what I need to deal with.  I want 2 

to make sure that we have a third night, so that's 3 

why I was trying to get a reference. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Because we still 6 

have some more processes to go through in this 7 

hearing. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  I understand.  I really 9 

will -- there is a lot of people that we are 10 

trying to represent and ask questions for. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Are the people that 12 

you are representing here with you tonight? 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Some of them are here, 14 

yes. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And just by -- I 16 

don't need them to say anything, but just show 17 

me a show of hands.  Okay.  I see somebody 18 

raising two, but -- okay. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  For the record, there 20 

was -- 21 
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  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You've got to make 1 

the numbers look good.  But anyway.  2 

  Ms. Schellin, can we look at another 3 

night as we move forward?  I'm not saying that 4 

we won't finish, but I can't get a feel from 5 

Mr. Otten about how much time -- much more time 6 

he needs, and I know when it comes to about 11:30 7 

everybody is going to get tired. 8 

  And, again, Mr. Otten, while we're 9 

doing this, ask questions that are germane to 10 

help us in our decision-making.  11 

  MR. OTTEN:  I hope they have been. 12 

 Okay.  I guess looking back on -- looking to 13 

page 8, this is -- this hotel is located in 14 

Square 2560, correct? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Correct. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And wouldn't this be the 17 

tallest building, if built, in this square? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  In this square, but 19 

not within -- if you went diagonally across the 20 

street, there are buildings that are this height 21 
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or taller. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right.  I see those on 2 

page 9.  Those aren't commercial buildings, are 3 

they? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  They are not 5 

commercial buildings.  I believe that they are 6 

residential buildings. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  They are all 8 

residential buildings.  And do you recall when 9 

they were built?  Weren't these buildings built 10 

before the zoning regulations were enacted? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 12 

to that one way or the other. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Is this -- all 14 

right.  Okay.  And one more question on the 15 

rendering.  Isn't it the case at the -- either 16 

the July or August ANC meeting, the applicant 17 

was showing a view from Biltmore Street of the 18 

hotel from the side?  Isn't that the case? 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 20 

to that. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Do you have a rendering 1 

from that perspective, by chance? 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That was before the 3 

plans.  The dates that you gave are before the 4 

plans that are presently before the Commission. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  On to the comp 6 

plan.  Did the Office of Planning inform you 7 

that the future land use map and generalized 8 

policy maps have the same legal weight as the 9 

comp plan? 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 11 

to that. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't it -- 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Sher had -- I 14 

think his report was submitted for the record, 15 

and it's about 20 pages. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And -- 17 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Mr. Otten, I 18 

think you might recall that we are actually 19 

familiar with the comp plan and the future land 20 

use map, and so on.  And so we don't really need 21 
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to have cross-examination that tests Mr. 1 

Glasgow's knowledge of those kinds of basic 2 

principles of the comp plan.  So try to focus 3 

on what information you think is helpful for 4 

us. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sounds good.  I 6 

basically -- what I'm trying to get at with the 7 

next couple of questions is at what point the 8 

Office of Planning instructed the applicant on 9 

some of the zoning regs. 10 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Well, then, ask 11 

them that question. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 13 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  But ask them 14 

questions that are -- you know, that are beyond 15 

the basic, I think. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sounds good.  So to 17 

that, when -- at what point did the Office of 18 

Planning inform you of the future land use map 19 

and the generalized policy map for this site 20 

location, do you recall? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't recall being 1 

informed of that at all. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it the case that 3 

the Office of Planning's Matthew Jesick gave 4 

the comprehensive plan/future land use map to 5 

the applicant, in particular to Brian Friedman, 6 

and the public at the July 2012 ANC special forum 7 

about this hotel? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Friedman didn't 9 

testify in this case.  I think Mr. Sher -- 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Have you seen-- 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  We have seen 12 

that many times, and Mr. Sher has a copy of that 13 

that he submitted with his report.  It's in the 14 

record. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Very good.  And isn't 16 

this proposed hotel site located in a 17 

neighborhood conservation area by these maps? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There are several 19 

different policies of the comprehensive plan 20 

that pertain to this project.  Mr. Sher's 21 
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20-page report has I think all of them listed. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, one of 2 

the questions that was asked early on about an 3 

hour ago, that last -- that very last question 4 

was asked an hour ago. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  I don't know.  I 6 

haven't -- 7 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So I think you're 8 

getting disarranged with your line of 9 

questioning, because you asked that one already. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh, okay.  Sorry.  I 11 

didn't realize that. 12 

  Are you aware that the densities of 13 

the neighborhood conservation areas are guided 14 

by the future land use map?  Is that -- was that 15 

in the testimony? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Sher had 17 

testimony with respect to how this project is 18 

consistent with the comprehensive plan. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And the future land use 20 

map calls for low density commercial, correct, 21 
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at this site? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's a part of what 2 

it provides for, and also the rooms within a 3 

hotel in a C-2-B district are counted against 4 

the residential. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Where did you get that 6 

information? 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The zoning 8 

regulations.  It's in Chapter 5. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Isn't low 10 

density commercial considered one- to 11 

three-story buildings? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We haven't testified 13 

as to that.  There are a number of things that 14 

occur with respect to that, and when you read 15 

that map the map provides some guidance and there 16 

are a lot of other criteria and provisions within 17 

the comprehensive plan that are applicable to 18 

numerous sites.  And this site is a very 19 

distinct site and referenced specifically and 20 

uniquely within the comprehensive plan as the 21 
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site of that church. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And doesn't this hotel 2 

site also fall under the Reed-Cooke overlay? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Part of the site does, 4 

and part of it doesn't.  And that's part of the 5 

discussion and the agreement with respect 6 

to -- with the Reed-Cooke Neighborhood 7 

Association. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  And the part that does 9 

lie in the Reed-Cooke overlay, that is where 10 

the hotel rooms are located, correct? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  Because the 12 

church -- it is extremely important that the 13 

church be preserved and preserved in a fashion 14 

that it is brought back to utilization and 15 

productive use. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And doesn't the overlay 17 

prohibit uses like a hotel? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That is why we 19 

have -- the Commission has set down a text 20 

amendment for consideration with respect to how 21 
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we would graft this project in with the 1 

Reed-Cooke overlay and have the Reed-Cooke 2 

overlay district extended for this entire site, 3 

to go up to North Euclid Street where it doesn't 4 

presently. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  You stated that the 6 

Commission had set down these changes.  What 7 

Commission are you referring to? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The Zoning 9 

Commission. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  When was that done? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can provide a date 12 

for that, but the Commission has the project 13 

down -- set the text amendment down. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Will there be dry 15 

cleaning on the site? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Go ahead and answer. 17 

  MR. SELMAN:  No.  18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Doesn't the 19 

Reed-Cooke overlay give a density bonus to 20 

developers who push to add to D.C.'s affordable 21 
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housing stock? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes, that's in the 2 

Reed-Cooke overlay district. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't adding to 4 

D.C.'s housing stock, especially affordable 5 

housing, a key city priority right now? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  This project is not 7 

a residential project.  And there are no 8 

residences that are located on the site. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it the case -- are 10 

you aware that the -- it was suggested that the 11 

Office of Planning offered this idea of a hotel 12 

project at this site? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Can you please repeat 14 

the question? 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Exhibit 94 shows 16 

that the applicant announced at a public ANC 17 

meeting in June 2012 that the Office of Planning 18 

suggested the idea of putting this hotel tower 19 

here at this location instead of a previously 20 

discussed housing project.  Is that the case? 21 
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 Are you aware of that? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I'm not aware of that. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  That's in 3 

Exhibit 94.  But it is not the case, though, 4 

that the Office of Planning did -- would 5 

not -- they would not suggest a hotel project 6 

like this.  That is not their role, right?  It's 7 

up to the applicant to offer projects? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We filed a project 9 

with the Commission.  The project has been 10 

amended with the -- and a filing in August.  11 

The project was amended further in response to 12 

discussions that we had with the Office of 13 

Planning, with the Reed-Cooke Neighborhood 14 

Association, and others, and the project that 15 

is before the Commission now is that that is 16 

reflected in the September 10th plans. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  But in the prior 18 

hearing, the architect suggested that they got 19 

involved in around 2005.  Wasn't there a housing 20 

project on board at that point? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  That's not part of the 1 

record before the Commission.  We didn't 2 

testify as to that. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  That was testified last 4 

hearing at the -- 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 6 

to -- 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  The architect, on the 8 

record -- 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- we did not testify 10 

as to a residential project on this property. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it the case that 12 

all recent projects within the Reed-Cooke 13 

overlay have met the basic tenets of the overlay 14 

and have included affordable units? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 16 

to that.  We had Mr. Sher give his report as 17 

to -- 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Wouldn't 19 

this hotel project be the first entirely 20 

commercial project providing no housing in Adams 21 
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Morgan and in the Reed-Cooke? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  And this would be the 2 

first project that has -- and the only project 3 

that has that specifically referenced historic 4 

church reference in the comprehensive plan and 5 

project where the Reed-Cooke neighborhood 6 

overlay was extended northward to encompass a 7 

significant amount of property that is not 8 

already within the Reed-Cooke overlay. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  But you would agree 10 

other projects besides the hotel could preserve 11 

the church, correct? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  We don't agree 13 

to that.  We didn't testify as to that. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  To the traffic 15 

and safety, pedestrian safety, isn't it true 16 

that the Reed-Cooke overlay neighborhood 17 

conservation area is a mixed use, main streets 18 

designation, concern itself about pedestrian 19 

safety? 20 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Would you repeat the 21 
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question, please? 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sure. 2 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Thank you. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  For the record -- 4 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  For the record, my 5 

name is Edward Papazian with the firm of Kimley 6 

Horn & Associates.  We prepared the traffic 7 

analyses for the -- for this project. 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  And I believe Mr. 9 

Papazian has been accepted as an expert before 10 

this Commission before.  I cannot recall 11 

whether he was qualified at the last hearing. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you for 13 

being here.  Isn't it true that the Reed-Cooke 14 

overlay and zoning regs in the area concern 15 

itself about pedestrian safety? 16 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I wasn't aware of 17 

that specifically, but I'm sure that's the case. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Do you believe that the 19 

traffic patterns brought on by the proposed 20 

hotel increases or decreases pedestrian safety, 21 
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and why? 1 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  My -- it is my 2 

feeling that it -- that this project does not 3 

adversely affect pedestrian safety in the area. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Let's look at 5 

our current plans, page A-11.  To your 6 

knowledge, is this a true depiction of the area? 7 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I'm waiting to get 8 

a copy of that. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm sorry.   10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, this is 11 

a site plan of a building to be built. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm sorry.  What 13 

page is that on? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  A-11. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Thank you. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Mr. Glasgow, the site 17 

plan, doesn't that have accurate measurements 18 

of the area, of the streets and the byways and 19 

throughways? 20 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  It does represent 21 
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what appears to be the proposed condition with 1 

the project, yes. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  And as testified 3 

earlier, the taxi stand is to be at the front 4 

of this building, correct? 5 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  That is correct. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  On Euclid Street? 7 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  That is correct. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  And we see in this image 9 

here taxis kind of lining up, for whatever 10 

reason, correct?  There's like two green and 11 

a yellow taxi? 12 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  That is correct. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 14 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  It's a staging area 15 

for three taxis. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Won't this taxi stand, 17 

which shows taxis piling up as already depicted 18 

here, block a critical pedestrian point of 19 

crossing on Euclid Street? 20 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Well, this is -- this 21 
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doesn't show the crosswalk.  I think that these 1 

are -- these are illustrative.  It is not an 2 

engineered drawing.  I maintain that, as a 3 

result of this project, through further 4 

discussion with DDOT, there will be a -- they 5 

will assure that the safe and efficient flow 6 

of pedestrian activity will be -- will result 7 

in combination with the vehicle flows. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  That's a really 9 

good point about the crosswalks.  I don't 10 

believe there are any renderings from bird's-eye 11 

perspective showing the crosswalks.  Are you 12 

aware of any that show that? 13 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I should point out 14 

that these site plans are illustrative 15 

concerning the building, not necessarily the 16 

transportation features in the area, such as 17 

crosswalks, stop bars, traffic control devices. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is that on the record 19 

for the public to see? 20 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I have not produced 21 
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such a document or such an exhibit. 1 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Mr. Otten, 2 

page 25 of their drawing shows a taxi dropoff 3 

clearly away from the corner.  This is a 4 

measured drawing. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Page 25? 6 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  It's a site 7 

plan.  It may not be, you know, the full detail. 8 

 Certainly, it doesn't show the crosswalk.  But 9 

it does show the dropoff further away from that 10 

intersection -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Uh-huh. 12 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  -- that concerns 13 

you. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes.  That's where the 15 

taxis will drop people off. 16 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Okay.  But -- 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  But there is -- I'm 18 

trying to get on the record there is a crosswalk 19 

here. 20 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Right.  And I'm 21 
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sure that DDOT won't permit them to park taxis 1 

in the crosswalk. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, we can see 3 

the -- where that can kind of get iffy on page 4 

A-15 and A-14.  I mean, DDOT hasn't expressed 5 

yet, to my knowledge, concern about these views 6 

with taxis blocking what is clearly a ramp to 7 

the sidewalk. 8 

  Let's just, for the record, page 9 

A-15, it's a more recent rendering, it shows 10 

a couple about to step onto the rampway down 11 

to where that cross occurs from the south side 12 

of Euclid to the Unity Park -- 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  This is a rendered 14 

perspective, Commissioners. 15 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  I don't think we 16 

are going to render any judgment based on a 17 

perspective view like this that shows, you know, 18 

figures placed in there or a taxicab drawn 19 

incorrectly.  So, I mean, if you want to testify 20 

that there is a concern about this, or you want 21 
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to request a drawing that shows where the taxi 1 

stand will end, that would be appropriate and 2 

helpful.  But that's about as far as it goes. 3 

 We don't need to belabor the point. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Right.  And not at 5 

this point. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 7 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  This is 8 

cross-examination.  Let's go back to the 9 

questions. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  More 11 

importantly is the number of crosswalks that 12 

a valet would have to cross, or that a person -- 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Is that a question? 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  It didn't 16 

sound -- it doesn't sound like you're starting 17 

off with a question. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. 19 

 Thank you. 20 

  How many crosswalks -- a person 21 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 108 

coming to this hotel, trip-generated, coming 1 

to this hotel in a sedan, from north on Euclid 2 

here to the porte cochere, how many crosswalks 3 

are you knowledgeable of that would have to be 4 

crossed to get to the porte cochere? 5 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I am not -- I have 6 

not counted the numbers of crosswalks that 7 

someone would need to cross.  I'm assuming you 8 

mean a vehicle driver would need to cross.  I 9 

do not have that number. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Do you have any numbers 11 

showing at each point a vehicle would interact 12 

with a pedestrian, whether it be crosswalk or 13 

a sidewalk? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. -- hold on.  Wait 15 

for one second.  Mr. Chairman, we are not 16 

proposing to construct any new streets.  17 

Whatever crosswalks are there are there, in 18 

public thoroughfares, and cars cross those 19 

crosswalks now.  So however that is with respect 20 

to traffic and what crosswalks are in that 21 
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community, that will not change. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Do you agree with 2 

what Mr. -- 3 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Mr. Glasgow is 4 

absolutely correct. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Well, 6 

that's the answer.  Next question. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  And for a sedan to get 8 

into the porte cochere, it crosses the sidewalk 9 

on two occasions, one to enter and one to leave, 10 

correct? 11 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I will assume that 12 

you are correct, yes. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So there are at 14 

least -- coming down Euclid, isn't it true that 15 

there are at least one, two, three, four, five 16 

points of pedestrian interaction with a vehicle? 17 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I have not done that 18 

count. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 20 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  And I would invite 21 
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you to possibly testify -- 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you. 2 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  -- to that. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Did your 4 

report make aware that there are two elementary 5 

schools in the area? 6 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Yes, sir.  We did 7 

point out the presence of elementary schools 8 

in the area. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And one on the same 10 

block as this hotel project? 11 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  It is further south, 12 

yes. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  And one about two blocks 14 

away?  Okay. 15 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Yes. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And are you aware of 17 

when check-in time is for this hotel, when there 18 

will be an increase in people coming into the 19 

building? 20 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I have not done an 21 
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hourly calculation of the -- and a determination 1 

of the checkout patterns.  We used Institute 2 

of Transportation Engineers' trip generation 3 

information for the hotel as the basis for our 4 

study. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So that means 6 

you didn't kind of get a cross-sense of kids 7 

leaving school and when check-in time might be? 8 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I did not. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Do we have a 10 

time, when the check-in time would be happening 11 

if this hotel is built? 12 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I didn't testify to 13 

that. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 15 

  MR. SELMAN:  Check-in will occur 16 

throughout the day. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you. 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Also, as has been 19 

reported previously, and in our report, and in 20 

the agreement that we have, when you leave the 21 
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hotel you must turn left on Champlain, so you 1 

are not going down by the elementary school.  2 

That's part of the agreement that is in the 3 

record. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you, Mr. Glasgow. 5 

 Appreciate that. 6 

  But to follow on that, 7 

wouldn't -- well, we will get into that later. 8 

 Isn't it the case that this proposed hotel will 9 

be the only hotel of this size within mid-city 10 

and nearly a mile from a Metro station? 11 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I did not testify to 12 

that. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  How close is this hotel 14 

to the closest Metro station in miles? 15 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I believe it was 16 

about .6 or .8 miles, a little less than a mile. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Isn't it the 18 

case that this proposed hotel will be the only 19 

hotel of this size, in terms of rooms, within 20 

mid-city that will have the primary vehicular 21 
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entrance on a narrow residential street? 1 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  I cannot give a 2 

judgment as to that characterization, as to it 3 

being the only one. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Did you look at 5 

other hotels in the area in terms of how they 6 

are -- in comparison of -- in terms of vehicle 7 

access? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, part of 9 

the site is already zoned commercial, and it 10 

is zoned commercial already on Champlain Street. 11 

 So to characterize Champlain Street as only 12 

a residential street is incorrect. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is it incorrect to say 14 

it's narrow in terms of surrounding throughways 15 

and relative to surrounding throughways? 16 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Champlain Street is 17 

a two-lane street. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And just one 19 

other thing.  Did you work on the truck 20 

management plan for the hotel? 21 
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  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Yes, I did. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And I guess -- I wanted 2 

to get a sense of, looking back again at -- and 3 

maybe it's because these renderings are -- I 4 

am just confused.  The A-11 shows an alleyway 5 

to the north of the church, to the truck loading 6 

area where there is a truck coming out and a 7 

car going in, correct? 8 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Yes. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And then, looking at 10 

A-14 and A-15, I'm seeing a car going in.  It 11 

doesn't seem to appear on A-14, the car going 12 

in, that another truck or car could come by at 13 

the same time. 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, once 15 

again, we are looking at the perspectives rather 16 

than the engineered site plans. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  And where are those?  18 

I'm sorry.  I can't find them in here. 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Page 25. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Page 25.  And that is 21 
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a page entitled "Sediment Control Plan," 1 

correct? 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes.  But it also 3 

shows the taxi dropoff on it, and it is a 4 

dimensioned plan. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you.  6 

I'll have to look at that closer. 7 

  Okay.  On page 50 -- I'm done with 8 

the traffic.  Thank you. 9 

  MR. PAPAZIAN:  Thank you. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  On page 50, isn't it 11 

true that your hotel designs predict that other 12 

buildings in the area, like the one just next 13 

to it, in this case south of the building, will 14 

also seek to upzone through a PUD process to 15 

keep up -- 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  That's irrelevant. 17 

 Next question. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  That's irrelevant? 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Yes.  Next 20 

question. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Do you believe that this 1 

hotel will set a trend in planning for the 2 

future? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 4 

to that. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Are you concerned about 6 

the planning future for the neighborhood? 7 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  That's 8 

irrelevant. 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Turn your 10 

microphone on.  Maybe he didn't hear you say 11 

it was irrelevant. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm sorry.  That's 13 

irrelevant? 14 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  It's 15 

irrelevant. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  The future planning?  17 

Okay. 18 

  Well, let me just affirm then, on 19 

page 50, I'm seeing a diagram that shows the 20 

building just south of the hotel, correct?  21 
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There is the smaller building there? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The drawing has 2 

various things noted on it, existing building 3 

height and potential PUD height. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that is for the 5 

building just south of the proposed hotel? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  That's correct.  7 

That is what the drawing shows. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you. 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Hasn't the applicant 10 

heard concerns about how a project of this size 11 

and use will continue to push up property values? 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  We didn't testify as to 13 

that. 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let me just let you 15 

know that I have -- I have talked to our 16 

Secretary, Ms. Schellin -- and by no means am 17 

I trying to cut you off -- but I'm asking you 18 

to do what is helpful to us.  Our schedule is 19 

very busy between now and the end of the year. 20 

 And it looks like you all are going to be coming 21 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 118 

back in January.  So I think that is -- so I 1 

need you to help us, because here we are -- 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  What time are we at? 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  We're at 8:15. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You are going on an 6 

hour and a half of cross-examination. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So I would like for 9 

you to get to your questions, let's get your 10 

answers, let's get through this -- 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm almost done. 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- because in 13 

January we will all probably have to refresh 14 

our memories.  So some of your questions will 15 

be relevant, because we will be trying to figure 16 

out where we are, because that's a long way from 17 

now. 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, just so 19 

that you're aware, we would hope that we could 20 

conclude this hearing this year.  And we are 21 



 

 

 NEAL R. GROSS 
 COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS 
 1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W. 
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C.  20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com 

 
 
 119 

concerned about the tactics of the opposition 1 

in trying to drag this hearing out. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Well, let me 3 

just tell you, we are going to do the best we 4 

can.  But, I mean, you know, time is of the 5 

essence and -- 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes, sir. 7 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- I can't cut off 8 

cross-examination.  I'm just asking him to 9 

pinpoint it to what is going to help us in our 10 

decision-making. 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Okay. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  My question was, you 13 

know, dealing with the impact.  This is the 14 

biggest project in Adams Morgan history, so I'm 15 

sorry if it takes a little longer.  But this 16 

is part of the administrative process, as I 17 

understand it.  Thank you for your time.  I 18 

really appreciate this.  I'm almost done. 19 

  Was there -- did the applicant ever 20 

do any analysis in understanding how the 21 
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increase in property value by this hotel will 1 

increase -- 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I object to that 3 

premise, Mr. Chairman.  This is a commercial 4 

property, and this is not a residential 5 

property.  The tax structure and the tax 6 

assessment formulas are different for 7 

commercial and residential properties as to how 8 

they are dealt with. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And did the applicant 10 

provide any analysis of that for the public? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  We were not 12 

required to.  There is no analysis as to that. 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  That's the answer. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  What is your next 16 

question?  Not one pertaining to that -- in that 17 

same area, but what is your next question? 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Was the 19 

applicant made aware of the letter sent by the 20 

Columbia Road Commercial and Friends Group, 21 
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Exhibit 47, in the summer of 2012? 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Were you aware of 2 

it? 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We are not aware. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  No.  And 5 

you can tell us what's in it in your 6 

presentation. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes, sir. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So next question. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  I appreciate that. 10 

  Was there any discussion, either 11 

between the applicant and Office of Planning, 12 

or the applicant and the public, regarding 13 

mitigating concerns that were raised about 14 

displacement of people from the immediate 15 

vicinity? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, I would 17 

like the record to reflect there is no 18 

residential occupancy on the property.  There 19 

is no residential displacement with respect to 20 

this property -- this project. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  I am talking about in 1 

the immediate vicinity.  Was there any 2 

discussion of -- 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I object to the 4 

characterization.  This is -- there are no 5 

residences that live on that property. 6 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  But concerns were 8 

raised.  Wasn't that made aware of the -- to 9 

the applicant, that people have concerns about 10 

this potentially happening?  Wasn't that raised 11 

through this public process? 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Yes or no, was it 13 

raised? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Was it raised?  15 

Possibly.  I mean, we could go through the 16 

record and see what all Mr. Otten has filed.  17 

The submission that I looked at that was -- that 18 

they filed with respect to the party status 19 

request raises those type of issues. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you. 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  They were raised by 1 

Mr. Otten. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  That's the answer. 3 

 Okay.  Next, Mr. Otten. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Was there any 5 

discussion by the applicant about mitigating 6 

these concerns by forging land trusts, community 7 

trusts, public/private grant programs, to offer 8 

incentives to help families and small businesses 9 

stay in the neighborhood, to address those 10 

concerns? 11 

  MR. SELMAN:  We weren't aware of the 12 

concerns. 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Otten raised the 14 

concerns, and then I guess has formulated what 15 

the response to the concerns has been.  That 16 

has not been our testimony.  We have an 17 

amenities package for the project.  There 18 

hasn't been anything shown as to where there 19 

is any residential displacement with respect 20 

to this project. 21 
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  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  And, Mr. 1 

Otten, in your testimony, you can provide that 2 

information to us. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Actually, I have 5 

some questions for you on a letter that was 6 

received, so -- 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Excellent. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- next question. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Speaking of amenities, 10 

let's look at what is being offered.  Wasn't 11 

it -- isn't it the case that the applicant's 12 

team, particularly Mr. Friedman, pronounced 13 

that this would be D.C.'s first green hotel at 14 

the ANC meetings? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Friedman didn't 16 

testify in this case. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  That's convenient.  18 

Okay.  Are there -- isn't it true there are 19 

several other Silver LEED hotels in the 20 

District? 21 
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  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 1 

to that. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Looking at the 3 

green roof on page A-10 and A-11, this shows 4 

the transformation of the green roof from 5 

October to September.  It would seem the green 6 

roof was cut down in size dramatically, correct, 7 

in terms of the actual vegetation? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can provide the 9 

measurement stuff for the record. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And this was done 11 

essentially for the applicant to turn the roof 12 

into another activity level of the hotel? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The applicant has 14 

always proposed that the roof be utilized in 15 

conjunction with the hotel. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  And presumably that 17 

more activity could be conducted with less 18 

vegetative roof? 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There are -- the 20 

Reed-Cooke Neighborhood Association document 21 
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has a number of restrictions as to where activity 1 

on the roof can be located.  Also, the 2 

Commission stated at the last hearing that they 3 

thought that there should be some further 4 

placement of the roof structures to ensure as 5 

to where activity on the roof would be located. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And that's to 7 

the RCNA agreement, which we talked about 8 

earlier.  That agreement also talks about 9 

putting in some fences, gates, plants, and other 10 

basic upgrades to the Marie Reed Field, correct? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  But there is not an 13 

agreement -- in the agreement, it doesn't 14 

include more permanent upgrades to the facility, 15 

like a new library or upgrades to the aquatic 16 

center, correct? 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The upgrades that 18 

were discussed were with respect to the physical 19 

appearance of the facility, mainly dealing with 20 

fencing and other areas with fields and -- 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you. 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- in our view they 2 

would be permanent. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Then, there are the 4 

various single payments to some local nonprofits 5 

and schools.  Do you know who chose the pool 6 

of nonprofits to receive these one-time 7 

payments? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We believe it was 9 

the -- those were in discussions with the ANC 10 

and the community at large. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Did the ANC inform you 12 

what that process consisted of, how the outreach 13 

happened and that sort of thing? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't 15 

understand -- I can't -- I don't know how to 16 

respond to the question.  I don't understand 17 

the question. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  The nonprofits 19 

receiving the one-time payments through this 20 

amenity, through this amenity process, what 21 
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was -- how was this pool of nonprofits chosen? 1 

 Is that informed to the applicant?  Was that 2 

told how that -- they were chosen?  You don't 3 

know? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  We can't answer 5 

the question. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  This discussion 7 

about Unity Park, which is across the street 8 

from the front of the church, isn't it the case 9 

that the applicant has never shown any potential 10 

plans about what may be happening at a public 11 

meeting regarding this park? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There have been no 13 

plans exhibited that we are aware of. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  And -- 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think that there was 16 

testimony that there would be a charette with 17 

respect to the community to get ideas as to 18 

how -- the utilization of Unity Park and how 19 

it should be improved. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  And for the record, that 21 
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was Mr. Friedman who just explained that to you, 1 

Mr. Glasgow? 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  I'm going from 3 

my recollection of the documents. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh.  I just saw him lean 5 

over.  Well, so has anybody in the public played 6 

a meaningful role in what is happening in that 7 

park, and what is happening as far as that as 8 

amenity and -- 9 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I think we stated that 10 

there would be a charette. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And when was the last 12 

time you were in touch with DPR about a charette 13 

or plans in this park? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We don't have a 15 

recollection of when that last contact was.  16 

But if you -- if it is of interest to the 17 

Commission, we can try to submit something for 18 

the record. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Let's turn to 20 

page 59.  This is -- again, we are focusing on 21 
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amenities.  One of the -- the crown jewel of 1 

this amenity, the permanent amenity, or I should 2 

say subterranean proffer, is page 59.  The 3 

purple area here, that's the community space, 4 

correct? 5 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  And what level is this 7 

community center in?  What level of the 8 

building?  Is that P1 parking? 9 

  MR. POLO:  It's on P1. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  So does that mean it is 11 

below ground? 12 

  MR. POLO:  Yes. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that means it won't 14 

have any windows, correct? 15 

  MR. POLO:  The entry portion has 16 

windows. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that's one level up? 18 

  MR. POLO:  No, that's two levels up. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Two levels up, and then 20 

you take elevators down to the community -- okay. 21 
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 Do you recall what former Commissioner Slater 1 

said about the community center at the setdown 2 

here? 3 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  That's not 4 

relevant. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  No? 6 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  No. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  I think they were -- 8 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  At the 9 

setdown meeting?  No. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Let me clarify it.  11 

Isn't the applicant supposed to respond to 12 

comments at the setdown hearing? 13 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  Yes.  But 14 

we are beyond that, so let's move on. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  We are beyond that.  16 

Okay.  Well, so I can't ask the question about 17 

what Commissioner Slater asked for in terms of 18 

this community -- this important amenity? 19 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  I think the 20 

point is that you are asking questions about 21 
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what they testified to, not about what 1 

Commissioner Slater said at setdown. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So did you hear 3 

Commissioner Slater's comments at the Zoning 4 

Commission hearing? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, we are 6 

not -- 7 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  You're asking 8 

the same question. 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You just -- hold on. 10 

 See, that's the problem.  You just had two 11 

Commissioners focus you back to asking 12 

questions, and you just ignored the two who are 13 

going to be making major votes and went on.  14 

So go back to your -- go back to your -- go back 15 

to your questioning, please. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.   17 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Mr. Chair, 18 

I object to your comment about major vote. 19 

  (Laughter.) 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm just 21 
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saying -- okay.  I just said two, but now it's 1 

three.  Do you want to -- four and five.  Okay. 2 

 You got it.  Let's move to the next question. 3 

 Thank you for your correction. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  This community -- 5 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  You're 6 

quite welcome. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- room was discussed 8 

with the public as a key amenity at various 9 

community meetings, correct? 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, I 11 

believe that the main amenity in the project 12 

has been the rehabilitation of the church.  This 13 

is -- the community room is an amenity among 14 

others that we have.  There are many major 15 

amenities, but the main amenity of our project 16 

is the -- 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you for 18 

clarifying that. 19 

  MR. GLASGOW:  -- rehabilitation of 20 

the church. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  This is one of the 1 

permanent amenities, though.  This is the 2 

community center.  That is the permanent 3 

amenity, correct? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  There are a number of 5 

permanent amenities. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  This is one of them. 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  It is one of them. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And this 9 

particular amenity was discussed at community 10 

meetings, correct? 11 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Where were those 13 

community meetings -- where were those 14 

discussion meetings held, do you recall? 15 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can submit that for 16 

the record. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Wasn't it -- weren't 18 

these meetings held at places like Mary's 19 

Center? 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  He said he was going 21 
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to submit it for the record.  Next question. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Isn't it true 2 

that there was never meaningful public 3 

discussion about the control of -- 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I object to that 5 

question. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it true that there 7 

wasn't public discussion about control of that 8 

community room, who gets to control it?  Is it 9 

under public control? 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  It's within the 11 

hotel. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  So the memorandum of 13 

understanding about that community room has one 14 

of the groups that have been kind of keylined 15 

to -- streamlined to control this community 16 

room.  That's Amila, correct?  That's the 17 

memorandum of understanding that talks about 18 

control of the community room? 19 

  MR. SELMAN:  I believe so they will 20 

be running the job center, which is officed in 21 
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the community center. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And who -- well, isn't 2 

it the case that the MOU with Amila states that 3 

the room will be available at no cost to 4 

partners? 5 

  MR. SELMAN:  I believe that is in 6 

the public record. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  So, but I don't -- what 8 

is the answer?  I don't recall seeing that. 9 

  MR. SELMAN:  Why don't we pull out 10 

the document and we can check it together. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Let's do that 12 

another time.  How much will it cost for groups 13 

that may not be partners to use this room? 14 

  MR. SELMAN:  There will not be a 15 

cost to anybody that uses this room that -- there 16 

will not be a cost to anybody that uses this 17 

room.  Period. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  And how would one use 19 

the room?  Is there going to be an application 20 

process for that? 21 
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  MR. SELMAN:  It hasn't been 1 

determined, other than as outlined in the 2 

amenities package. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Looking at the MOUs for 4 

the nonprofits that you are giving a one-time 5 

payment to, or in support of -- or working with 6 

in some capacity on this project, it would seem 7 

there is a clause in there that the applicant 8 

can break the agreement with 30 days' notice. 9 

 Is that correct? 10 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We'll have to submit 11 

that for the record. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't it also the 13 

case there is no grievance process included in 14 

the MOUs for the parties in case of a 15 

disagreement, intention not to want to break 16 

the contract? 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We will -- if you are 18 

asking what the agreements provide, we can 19 

either pull those and look at them, or we can 20 

submit -- resubmit those for the record.  The 21 
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agreements are a matter of record. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  If we already have 2 

it -- 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Yes, sir. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- please don't 5 

resubmit it.  Just maybe tell us what exhibit 6 

number it is. 7 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Well, we can refer to 8 

the record as to where they are. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Appreciate that.  10 

Daytime foot traffic -- that was one of the 11 

benefits being offered by this project.  Has 12 

there been any analysis done by the applicant 13 

on this -- the increase in daytime foot traffic? 14 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We have pedestrian 15 

counts that were submitted by the traffic 16 

engineer. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  And does it discuss 18 

particularly what types of commercial entities 19 

these pedestrians might be visiting when they 20 

leave the hotel, like based on the type of person 21 
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visiting this hotel? 1 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't believe that 2 

that -- that there is that type of analysis, 3 

but the pedestrian counts are there, both with 4 

respect to the existing and future anticipated 5 

conditions. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Okay.  And 7 

I'm down to my last set of questions here.  Yeah, 8 

all right. 9 

  Okay.  Jobs.  This is also another 10 

proffered benefit of what this hotel might be 11 

bringing.  In 2010, December 2010 when I was 12 

a Commissioner, ANC Commissioner on 1C, the 13 

applicant -- isn't it true that the applicant 14 

at that time proclaimed that this would be a 15 

unionized hotel? 16 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 17 

to that. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Have you signed a union 19 

contract as of yet? 20 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We haven't testified 21 
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as to that. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  But you're proffering 2 

these jobs as something that is a benefit to 3 

the community.  Wouldn't a signed contract show 4 

as such with the union? 5 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No.  It's the project 6 

that generates the jobs. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Has the applicant seen 8 

Exhibit 127, a letter from a woman -- somehow 9 

it got mixed up in the submission of another 10 

group, but it seemed to be a letter from Marta 11 

Hernandez, who discusses her life working at 12 

a hotel, an ununionized hotel downtown? 13 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We didn't testify as 14 

to that letter. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm just asking the 16 

question, did you see that exhibit? 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We did not testify. 18 

 This is cross-examination as to what witnesses 19 

testified.  We didn't testify as to Exhibit 20 

Number 127. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  I'm asking you if you 1 

just saw something that was on the record.  2 

That's all.  Okay.  I'll keep going on. 3 

  Is the applicant aware that the comp 4 

plan talks about jobs offering a living wage 5 

to prevent further displacement? 6 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The comprehensive 7 

plan testimony was submitted by Mr. Sher and 8 

is a matter of record. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Does he address the 10 

living wage issue in that testimony, to your 11 

recollection? 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We can look through 13 

Mr. Sher's testimony, the outline of his 14 

testimony, and we can look through the record 15 

and we can respond as to whether that was covered 16 

during his testimony or in his written report. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  How many 18 

jobs -- permanent full-time jobs will this hotel 19 

employ?  Do you have those numbers? 20 

  MR. SMART:  The hotel or the entire 21 
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project? 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Just the permanent 2 

full-time hotel jobs. 3 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Members of the 4 

Commission, there are a number of different job 5 

sources within the hotel.  We've got the spa, 6 

we've got the restaurant, we've got the hotel 7 

itself.  All of those contribute to the number 8 

of jobs being generated by the project. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  That's -- yes, that's 10 

the number I'm seeking. 11 

  MR. SMART:  The entire permanent 12 

jobs is just less than 300 -- 290. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Two hundred and ninety. 14 

 And wasn't it the case that the applicant 15 

informed the ANC that -- okay.  I'm sorry.  16 

Strike that. 17 

  So you're saying currently the 18 

number of total permanent full-time jobs, not 19 

including construction jobs, is just under 300. 20 

  MR. SMART:  At least, yes. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Isn't it the 1 

case that the applicant was actually informing 2 

the ANC that there would be 565 full-time jobs 3 

created by this project? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  The testimony before 5 

the Commission is in the report and it was just 6 

answered. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Also, on the 8 

record and submitted by this applicant, is the 9 

memorandum of understanding between the Adams 10 

Morgan Church Hotel and the Adams Morgan Youth 11 

Leadership Academy.  And they are also under 12 

the understanding that there is 565 jobs created 13 

by this project in terms of full-time jobs, of 14 

which they have to place a certain amount.  Why 15 

has the jobs decreased from this number down 16 

to 230? 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We haven't changed 18 

the number of jobs testified to of at least 290 19 

jobs.  That is the testimony that is before the 20 

Commission from the applicant in this 21 
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proceeding. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  At the ANC meeting, 2 

were you including construction jobs, or what 3 

is the difference? 4 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I wasn't at that ANC 5 

meeting. 6 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  And speaking of 7 

ANC, I can't believe I just asked that because 8 

I was getting ready to say to you, we are not 9 

going to rehash the ANC meeting.  We are not 10 

going to have the ANC meeting here, but here 11 

you've got me asking ANC questions. 12 

  (Laughter.) 13 

  So answer that one and let's leave 14 

it at that. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you for 16 

your time. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  No? 18 

  MR. GLASGOW:  I don't know. 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You're finished.  20 

Okay. 21 
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  (Applause.) 1 

  No applause.  No applause, please. 2 

 We follow like the City Council.  No 3 

demonstration in the chambers.  Even though you 4 

may feel like you want to clap, just keep it 5 

to yourself.  Clap in your mind.  Okay?  Thank 6 

you very much.  Thank you, Mr. Otten, and thanks 7 

to the applicant. 8 

  Okay.  Let's go to the Office of 9 

Planning and -- can we do the Office of Planning 10 

and DDOT at the same time?  Okay.  Mr. Jesick? 11 

  MR. JESICK:  Thank you, Mr. 12 

Chairman, and members of the Commission.  The 13 

Office of Planning supports the most recent 14 

revised design for the church hotel project.  15 

The new design addresses the issues of height 16 

and compatibility with the neighborhood that 17 

were previously raised by the Office of 18 

Planning. 19 

  OP appreciates that the 20 

neighborhood representatives worked together 21 
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with the applicant to reach this design 1 

solution, and we also appreciate the work that 2 

went into the proposed text amendment that would 3 

help preserve the intent of the Reed-Cooke 4 

overlay. 5 

  We will continue to work with the 6 

Historic Preservation Office and the Office of 7 

the Attorney General as they review the building 8 

design that is proposed and the draft text 9 

amendment.   10 

  And, in summary, the revised design, 11 

together with the text amendment, is not 12 

incompatible and is generally consistent with 13 

the comprehensive plan, and OP recommends 14 

approval of the application subject to the 15 

revised design, the implementation of the text 16 

amendment, and the written agreement between 17 

the neighborhood and the applicant.  I would 18 

be happy to take any questions. 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you, 20 

and we will go to Mr. White.  Mr. White? 21 
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  MR. WHITE:  Thank you, Chairman 1 

Hood.  DDOT has reviewed the site plan case file 2 

and the consultant's transportation report and 3 

believes that the project's impacts to the 4 

transportation network are manageable under 5 

certain conditions.  To ensure the project's 6 

impacts are manageable, DDOT believes the 7 

following conditions are necessary. 8 

  First, the applicant provided 9 

transportation demand measurements for 10 

the -- for hotel employees.  DDOT recommends 11 

these measures in addition to several other 12 

measures recommended in that report.   13 

  Further, we recommend the applicant 14 

restrict parking access to guest and hotel 15 

visitors only, so as not to attract additional 16 

vehicle trips to the neighborhood. 17 

  Third, the applicant monitors their 18 

loading and delivery activity and reports 19 

monitoring to the ANC semi-annually, as well 20 

as to DDOT.  The applicant will need to 21 
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coordinate with DDOT on the realignment of the 1 

north-south alley that provides trash pickup 2 

and deliveries to the neighborhood. 3 

  And, finally, the applicant will 4 

need to go through the public space permitting 5 

process to address any valet dropoff, guest 6 

access, and taxi stand location and operation. 7 

   Thank you. 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you, 9 

both.  Commissioners, any questions of the 10 

Office of Planning or District Department of 11 

Transportation?  Any questions?   12 

  (No response.) 13 

  Okay.  Does the applicant have 14 

any -- 15 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  I have 16 

one. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm sorry.  Vice 18 

Chair? 19 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  Thank you, 20 

Mr. Chairman.  I have a question about Champlain 21 
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Street.  It's a two-way street with parking on 1 

both sides, is that correct? 2 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. 3 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  And is 4 

there any way to -- I think that there are some 5 

issues related to the two-way traffic.  Is there 6 

any consideration by DDOT to make that, you know, 7 

like a -- modifying either the traffic going 8 

both ways or parking on both sides?  Do you feel 9 

that it is I guess sufficient? 10 

  MR. HENSON:  Generally, yes.  11 

Narrow streets are conducive to lower speeds, 12 

so generally we like it when streets are narrow 13 

and speeds are slow.  When we start removing 14 

parking or make facilities one way, the speeds 15 

go up, and safety generally becomes a problem 16 

at that point. 17 

  VICE CHAIRPERSON COHEN:  Thank you. 18 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Any other questions 19 

for either OP or DDOT? 20 

  (No response.) 21 
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  Okay.  Do we have any cross from the 1 

applicant? 2 

  MR. GLASGOW:  No, sir. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Chairman Reynolds, 4 

do you have any cross-examination of either the 5 

Office of Planning or DDOT? 6 

  MR. REYNOLDS:  No, thank you. 7 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Did I 8 

do -- did I do Mr. James first or -- yes, let's 9 

do -- he went first last time?  Kalorama 10 

Citizens, any cross?  Good evening.  Turn your 11 

microphone on and identify yourself.  You may 12 

begin. 13 

  MR. JAMES:  Good evening.  I am 14 

Dennis James, President of Kalorama Citizens 15 

Association, and we have some questions for both 16 

DDOT and the Office of Planning. 17 

  When addressing the Office of 18 

Planning, should I designate -- I mean, should 19 

I seek one of the particular persons who are 20 

present or -- 21 
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  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You can just ask and 1 

the appropriate person will answer the 2 

question -- Mr. Jesick, if not Ms. Steingasser, 3 

if not Mr. Lawson. 4 

  MR. JAMES:  Thank you.   5 

  Okay.  Did the Office of Planning, 6 

on August 27th, 2012, after a long period of 7 

study, issue a 22-page report to the Zoning 8 

Commission which concluded that the Adams Morgan 9 

Church Hotel is not consistent with the 10 

comprehensive plan, as well as the land use maps 11 

of the plan, as well as the intent of the 12 

Reed-Cooke overlay? 13 

  MR. JESICK:  We submitted a report 14 

based on the design under review at that time, 15 

which concluded as you have stated. 16 

  MR. JAMES:  In that August 27th 17 

report, did the report conclude that the 18 

introduction of a large hotel and restaurant 19 

would go against the intent of the Reed-Cooke 20 

overlay, which seeks to protect the residential 21 
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character of the neighborhood while allowing 1 

some small-scale commercial enterprises? 2 

  MR. JESICK:  We did make that 3 

statement at that time, yes. 4 

  MR. JAMES:  Did the Office of 5 

Planning on September 6th, 2012 reverse its 6 

position and report to the Zoning Commission 7 

after the Reed-Cooke Neighborhood Association 8 

and the developers agreed on a 72-foot high hotel 9 

with 220 guest rooms, only nine feet shorter 10 

and seven rooms less than that previously 11 

planned? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  We issued a report 13 

along those lines, and also in the intervening 14 

time DDOT issued its report, which concluded 15 

that there would be minimal transportation 16 

impacts. 17 

  MR. JAMES:  Did the nine-foot 18 

reduction in height and seven rooms less address 19 

all of the issues raised in the August 27th, 20 

2012, including future land use maps, the intent 21 
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of the Reed-Cooke overlay to promote residences 1 

and small businesses and comprehensive plan 2 

guidance on infill and neighborhood 3 

conservation generally? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  We feel that the 5 

revised design, together with the text 6 

amendment, addressed those issues. 7 

  MR. JAMES:  Won't the text 8 

amendment be the subject of an additional 9 

hearing? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes.  The text 11 

amendment will have a public hearing before the 12 

Zoning Commission. 13 

  MR. JAMES:  Wouldn't it be 14 

appropriate for the Zoning Commission to make 15 

a -- well, I guess I'm asking the Commission 16 

that.  I'll skip that question. 17 

  Does Deputy Mayor Victor Hoskins 18 

oversee the Office of Planning? 19 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  The Office of 20 

Planning is part of the Deputy Mayor for Planning 21 
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and Economic Development's cluster.  But the 1 

Director of the Office of Planning is the 2 

principal planner for the Mayor of the District 3 

of Columbia. 4 

  MR. JAMES:  The director is?  Ms. 5 

Tregoning? 6 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Yes. 7 

  MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  Were Office 8 

of Planning staff members aware that on 9 

September 5th the Deputy Mayor for Economic 10 

Development, Victor Hoskins, wrote to the Zoning 11 

Commission endorsing the church hotel project? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  I was not aware of 13 

that. 14 

  MR. JAMES:  Is it typical for the 15 

Deputy Mayor to endorse a project while the 16 

Zoning Commission is seeking objective advice 17 

from the Office of Planning staff during a PUD 18 

application process? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  I can't say if it's 20 

typical or not.  I'm not sure. 21 
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  MR. JAMES:  In your experience, is 1 

this something that you have run into before? 2 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I'm sorry.  3 

Could -- I don't believe that was something we 4 

testified to.  If you could point us to that 5 

in our -- 6 

  MR. JAMES:  I'll withdraw the 7 

question. 8 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Could I answer 9 

the question for you?  I mean, Mr. Chairman?  10 

We have received letters from the Deputy Mayor 11 

for Planning and Economic Development on 12 

previous projects. 13 

  MR. JAMES:  Thank you. 14 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  I can't tell you 15 

how frequent it is, but it happens. 16 

  MR. JAMES:  Is the Office of 17 

Planning satisfied that the memorandum of 18 

understanding reached by the Reed-Cooke 19 

Neighborhood Association and the developer 20 

satisfies all of the many substantive reasons 21 
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that the Office of Planning initially could not 1 

support the church hotel's PUD application? 2 

  MR. JESICK:  We feel it addresses 3 

many of the issues.  We have asked the applicant 4 

for more information about lighting and noise 5 

at the hotel, and we understand that they are 6 

working on those issues. 7 

  MR. JAMES:  Wouldn't the issues 8 

need to be resolved before this Commission could 9 

make a decision? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes, that's correct. 11 

 So, but that's not atypical, that at this stage 12 

we would still be working out the smaller issues 13 

of any PUD application. 14 

  MR. JAMES:  Won't the impact of the 15 

number of rooms be very, very similar when it 16 

is only a difference of seven rooms, from 227 17 

down to 220?  Isn't that the engine that drives 18 

the effect on the community? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  We feel that the 20 

applicant has addressed the issues associated 21 
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with the impacts to the community, such as, for 1 

example, traffic and parking. 2 

  MR. JAMES:  Are you familiar with 3 

the financial report that the developer's team 4 

presented at the previous hearing? 5 

  MR. JESICK:  I've seen the report. 6 

  MR. JAMES:  And that it stated that 7 

if there were one floor removed from the hotel 8 

that it would become a marginal financial 9 

operation? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  I remember the 11 

applicant testifying to that. 12 

  MR. JAMES:  Yes.  So, in the 13 

Reed-Cooke Neighborhood Association MOU, you're 14 

familiar with parts of it that describe use of 15 

the roof for functions? 16 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes, I'm aware that it 17 

contains provisions along those lines. 18 

  MR. JAMES:  Yes.  So does the 19 

Office of Planning agree that the hotel will 20 

become sort of a party and event type operation 21 
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much more so than a regular hotel might, because 1 

it is on the edge of marginality economically 2 

otherwise? 3 

  MR. JESICK:  We didn't testify to 4 

that. 5 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  And are you 6 

satisfied with the -- I believe you said that 7 

you were satisfied with DDOT's study or review 8 

of the -- of the applicant's traffic 9 

information? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 11 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  I think I am 12 

ready to move on to DDOT.  I'm sorry.  I didn't 13 

catch the DDOT representative's name? 14 

  MR. WHITE:  Bryon White. 15 

  MR. JAMES:  Bryon White.  Thank 16 

you.  So, Mr. White, are you familiar with the 17 

report that DDOT issued, the memorandum dated 18 

August 29th? 19 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. 20 

  MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  On page 2, 21 
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not counting the Form 150 front page -- I didn't 1 

quite know how to -- they are not numbered, the 2 

pages are not numbered, so I was just going on 3 

the actual DDOT product.   4 

  On page 2, under Overview, the 5 

second sentence, "It is important" -- well, how 6 

would the second sentence alter the usage of 7 

the transportation network?  If I might ask you 8 

to read that sentence as part of the question. 9 

  MR. WHITE:  "It is important to note 10 

that the project is likely to alter the usage 11 

of the transportation network in the immediate 12 

area." 13 

  MR. JAMES:  Of the project?  Is 14 

that correct? 15 

  MR. WHITE:  Of the project.  I'm 16 

sorry. 17 

  MR. JAMES:  So my first question is, 18 

how will it alter the usage of the transportation 19 

network? 20 

  MR. WHITE:  Certainly it will add 21 
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some type of trips as it is an improved site. 1 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  And do you have 2 

any -- does DDOT have any information as to what 3 

types of trips those are?  Are those truck 4 

trips, private car trips, taxi trips? 5 

  MR. WHITE:  All of the above, and 6 

including pedestrian and bike trips as well. 7 

  MR. JAMES:  But does DDOT have any 8 

data on how many such trips might be added? 9 

  MR. WHITE:  We have the 10 

consultant's report.  In addition, we have, of 11 

our own use, case studies of similar hotels, 12 

not necessarily similar but hotels of similar 13 

land use, surrounding land use, so that we can 14 

kind of gauge roughly, in general terms, whether 15 

or not the applicant's estimate is in the 16 

ballpark.  Don't think for a second that trip 17 

generation is an exact science. 18 

  MR. JAMES:  Does DDOT have any data 19 

from previous recent years of this area?  20 

Because this project has been talked about for 21 
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a very long time.  I recognize that it wasn't 1 

actually applied for until last July, but I was 2 

wondering if there was any preliminary work 3 

done? 4 

  MR. WHITE:  As it turns out, we do 5 

have existing count data from this area.  The 6 

District routinely does signal timing 7 

optimization.  And as part of that process, we 8 

collect counts at signalized intersections, 9 

several of which surround this area.  So we 10 

have -- we have our own validation data is I 11 

guess what I'm getting at. 12 

  MR. JAMES:  So DDOT compared its own 13 

counts with those generated by the consultant 14 

for the developer? 15 

  MR. WHITE:  No.  We compared our 16 

counts with the existing counts that the 17 

applicant's consultant took. 18 

  MR. JAMES:  Anyway, I believe 19 

that's what I was referring to.  I might not 20 

have phrased it very well. 21 
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  Does DDOT know what number of 1 

vehicular transit and all of the other lists 2 

there -- you know, pedestrian, bicycle trips, 3 

and so forth -- will be generated by this 4 

project?  Have you done a projection? 5 

  MR. WHITE:  The applicant has done 6 

a projection of vehicle trips, which, in reports 7 

like this, tend to start out as a whole bunch 8 

of trips, and then we cull out pedestrian trips 9 

and transit trips and you bring it down to 10 

vehicle trips because you have a roadway network 11 

that is basically inflexible in this area. 12 

  So reports like this tend to focus 13 

on vehicle trips.  We assume sort of an infinite 14 

capacity of sidewalk and transit, which isn't 15 

true, but for the purpose of similar reviews 16 

like this. 17 

  I guess to answer your question 18 

directly, we don't have a breakdown specifically 19 

of an estimate of trips for this particular site 20 

by mode share. 21 
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  MR. JAMES:  Right.  Thank you for 1 

that.  Are you familiar with Adams Morgan and 2 

its own peculiar traffic business? 3 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. 4 

  MR. JAMES:  So I'm referring -- are 5 

you familiar with Fridays and Saturday nights 6 

in Adams Morgan when we are -- and the area is 7 

overwhelmed with vehicle traffic searching for 8 

parking? 9 

  MR. WHITE:  I am aware of the 10 

conditions on Friday and Saturday nights. 11 

  MR. JAMES:  Right.  And does DDOT 12 

feel that the insertion of a 220-room hotel that 13 

will have -- it sounds as if they are very 14 

interested in having events perhaps on the roof, 15 

and as well as in the restaurant and other 16 

meeting spaces, and perhaps a restaurant that 17 

has a capacity of 2,000 persons, does DDOT 18 

believe that this is not going to have any 19 

substantial effect on the traffic in Adams 20 

Morgan? 21 
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  MR. WHITE:  I would point out that 1 

the amount of vehicle traffic that the site is 2 

going to generate is partially limited to the 3 

availability of parking.  If you don't have the 4 

parking, you don't generate the trips. 5 

  MR. JAMES:  Does DDOT delineate 6 

between the type of casual usage that someone 7 

going out for a good time might say, "Let's give 8 

Adams Morgan a shot," as opposed to somebody 9 

with a destination like a hotel, "Yeah, I'm going 10 

to that hotel tonight, and I'm going to drive 11 

my car there"? 12 

  MR. WHITE:  Can you rephrase the 13 

question, please? 14 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  I would say that 15 

there is two different types -- would DDOT 16 

recognize that there may be two different types 17 

of traffic, and those who are heading to a 18 

specific destination, like a hotel, and will 19 

definitely drive and those who may say, "Hey, 20 

it looks like Adams Morgan is going to be busy 21 
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on a Friday night, let's not go there"?   1 

  But, you know, you might have 2 

intended to go there.  They are not so committed 3 

to coming there.  Does DDOT pay any attention 4 

to the kinds of -- I mean, we have -- well, I'm 5 

trying not to make statements.  Do you 6 

understand the point that I am trying to get 7 

to? 8 

  MR. WHITE:  I don't.  I'm sorry. 9 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  I'll move on.  10 

On page 3 there is a chart of the intersections 11 

close to the hotel -- on page 3 of your report. 12 

 There is eight intersections.  How many of the 13 

intersections near the hotel are signalized? 14 

  MR. WHITE:  Two. 15 

  MR. JAMES:  Does DDOT anticipate 16 

the need to signalize other intersections 17 

with -- if the hotel should come into operation 18 

as applied for? 19 

  MR. WHITE:  We haven't looked at 20 

signalization, and it would -- based on the 21 
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preliminary estimate, the short answer is no. 1 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  If it became 2 

necessary, does DDOT -- is there sort of ballpark 3 

estimate of how much it costs to signalize an 4 

intersection? 5 

  MR. WHITE:  Approximately 250,000, 6 

give or take. 7 

  MR. JAMES:  Thank you. 8 

  MR. WHITE:  Depending on the size. 9 

  MR. JAMES:  On page 4, are you 10 

familiar with the section on transit services? 11 

  MR. WHITE:  Familiar enough, yes. 12 

  MR. JAMES:  Could you please read 13 

the fifth sentence that begins, "DDOT believes"? 14 

 It's in the middle of the paragraph. 15 

  MR. WHITE:  "DDOT believes the most 16 

realistic option for hotel guests is to use the 17 

circulator bus as the stop for the southbound 18 

buses is located one block to the east." 19 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  Isn't this 20 

wishful thinking considering luggage and 21 
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mind-set of those able to afford to stay at a 1 

hotel, that they will ride a -- you know, an 2 

ordinary bus from a subway stop?  I mean, are 3 

they going to be at the subway stop to start 4 

with? 5 

  MR. WHITE:  If there is no place to 6 

park, yes.  Yes, it is reasonable. 7 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay.  Has DDOT done 8 

any studies about how guests come to hotels in 9 

Washington, D.C., if they are coming from an 10 

airport, from Reagan, from Dulles?  Do they take 11 

Metro to come to hotels? 12 

  MR. WHITE:  Very little data we have 13 

suggests that the land use pays -- plays an 14 

enormous role in the amount of vehicle trips 15 

that a hotel will generate. 16 

  MR. JAMES:  Does that mean that if 17 

there were parking available at the hotel then 18 

that would generate the vehicle trips? 19 

  MR. WHITE:  That is one part of the 20 

land use.  If there are existing destinations 21 
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adjacent, if there is a Metro stop, if there 1 

is transit, if there is available parking, if 2 

it's free parking, there are several factors 3 

that all play a role into vehicle trip 4 

generation. 5 

  MR. JAMES:  Isn't it true that in 6 

this report DDOT recounts how it has pushed the 7 

developer to build less parking? 8 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. 9 

  MR. JAMES:  And yet Adams Morgan has 10 

a shortage of parking.  Is this not something 11 

that DDOT is aware of? 12 

  MR. WHITE:  We are aware. 13 

  MR. JAMES:  So is DDOT helping Adams 14 

Morgan solve its parking problem if this hotel 15 

comes? 16 

  MR. WHITE:  We are not trying to 17 

help them solve their parking problem with this 18 

site.  I don't think that was the intention.  19 

If we were to help them solve the problem by 20 

adding parking supply, it would quickly be 21 
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gobbled up and you would have the same problem. 1 

 But now you would have more cars in Adams Morgan 2 

and still the same problem. 3 

  So in certain areas increasing the 4 

supply won't matter at all, and it will increase 5 

traffic. 6 

  MR. JAMES:  Are you aware that 7 

through recent legislation Council Member 8 

Graham has awarded each household in Adams 9 

Morgan a visitor parking pass? 10 

  MR. WHITE:  I am not aware, no. 11 

  MR. JAMES:  Well, and it is of 12 

course being implemented through DDOT.  So not 13 

only are we saddled with all of the cars that 14 

we already  have, but each household can have 15 

a guess -- 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. James, you -- 17 

  MR. JAMES:  Sorry.  It was going to 18 

be a question. 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- you always start 20 

off doing well, and that's -- the longer it goes, 21 
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then we start testifying.  If you can just ask 1 

questions.  I know what you're trying to do -- 2 

  MR. JAMES:  Okay. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- but ask it in a 4 

question. 5 

  MR. JAMES:  I beg your pardon.  I'm 6 

sorry. 7 

  Anyway -- 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  It was actually 9 

interesting, but I would like for you to ask 10 

it in a question. 11 

  MR. JAMES:  Right.  12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Phrase it in a 13 

question. 14 

  MR. JAMES:  Well, with the 15 

introduction of a potential hotel and our 16 

existing parking crunch on the ground, what does 17 

DDOT think about the introduction of all of these 18 

household parking passes which can be used at 19 

any time? 20 

  MR. HENSON:  That's not what we 21 
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testified about. 1 

  MR. JAMES:  Thank you.  So in the 2 

next section, Site Access and Loading, on 3 

page 4, this is rather a long question.  On the 4 

site access and loading section, DDOT states 5 

that they require that loading take place on 6 

private space and no backup maneuvers take place 7 

in the public realm, public space, or in areas 8 

of private space accessible to the general 9 

public.  10 

   How is this possible considering 11 

the configuration of the 18th and Champlain 12 

alley?  Wouldn't trucks have to back up to get 13 

into the loading docks of the hotel?  And isn't 14 

the public space -- isn't the alley a 15 

public -- part of the public realm, part of 16 

public space? 17 

  MR. WHITE:  The alley is part of the 18 

public space, but my understanding is the trucks 19 

would make a turnaround movement within the 20 

alley. 21 
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  MR. HENSON:  Yeah.  I'll clarify on 1 

that a little bit.  That is written to discuss 2 

how trucks function on our streets, not our alley 3 

network.  So we allow full movements on our 4 

alley networks, and actually beyond that we 5 

really encourage applicants to do that.   6 

  Obviously, there are plenty of 7 

places across the city where that doesn't 8 

happen.  We can all cite probably a hundred.  9 

But our design and engineering manual requires 10 

back-in movements off of our right-of-way, which 11 

are allowed on the alleys. 12 

  MR. JAMES:  All right.  Thank you 13 

for that clarification. 14 

  I think that's all I have for DDOT. 15 

 Thank you. 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Thank you 17 

very much.  18 

  I don't see Mr. Otten.  Has he left? 19 

 Oh, he has left?  Oh.  Okay.  Thought you had 20 

gotten tired and went home.  Question for 21 
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you -- do you know about how long -- the questions 1 

you might have for OP and DDOT together, about 2 

how much time you need? 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Depends on the answers, 4 

but I'm hoping within the hour.  5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Ms. 6 

Schellin, let's try to do an assessment at about 7 

9:30.  We may have to continue this hearing.  8 

Actually, let me just say what I'm thinking.  9 

I'm thinking about trying to continue it until 10 

tomorrow night. 11 

  This is our volleyball night 12 

normally, but we're trying to be accommodating, 13 

Mr. May, in trying to get through this case.  14 

But a lot of it is going to dictate on the 15 

cross-exam, and so I can't dictate the timing 16 

on that.  But we are looking at tomorrow night. 17 

  Ms. Schellin, I'm not sure if -- did 18 

we find out whether our interpreters could come 19 

back? 20 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  They can. 21 
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  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So, everybody, 1 

let's think about that.  We are going to do an 2 

assessment at 9:30.  Okay?  Mr. Otten, 3 

is -- now, we have a case tomorrow night.  We 4 

have three cases.  But they should move -- I 5 

shouldn't probably say this, but they should 6 

move relatively quickly I think.  I'm seeing 7 

nods.  8 

  So at about 9:00, if we're still on 9 

those three, we've got a problem. But I think 10 

those should move relatively quickly.  But 11 

let's -- Mr. Otten, let's see how we're doing. 12 

 If not, I think we're looking at January 13 

or -- okay -- 2013. 14 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  And, Mr. 15 

Otten, hopefully you are not going to repeat 16 

any of Mr. James' questions. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm sorry.  I'm just a 18 

layperson here trying to participate in what 19 

is the biggest project in my neighborhood's 20 

history. 21 
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  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  I know.  1 

But what I said was, hopefully you are not going 2 

to ask the same questions, which have already 3 

been answered.  4 

  MR. OTTEN:  I hope not. 5 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Well, 6 

we'll point them out to you. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  I 8 

appreciate that, because we want due diligence 9 

in this matter. 10 

  Okay.  Okay.  So, for the record, 11 

this is Champlain Street Neighbors, and my name 12 

is Chris Otten.  I will be cross-examining the 13 

person who wrote these reports for the District 14 

of Columbia Office of Planning.  That's 15 

Jennifer Steingasser, correct? 16 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  They were 17 

actually written by staff, Matt Jesick, reviewed 18 

by Mr. Lawson and myself, and I signed them. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And you signed off on 20 

them? 21 
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  MS. STEINGASSER:  Yes. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Just a 2 

quick analysis of the two prior reports to your 3 

final report, the report dated August 27th, 4 

2012, and then the report dated November 4th, 5 

2011.  That's your setdown report. 6 

  Are you aware that nearly 85, 90 7 

percent of these two reports are nearly 8 

identical in terms of language and concerns? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And then, and 11 

both of these reports are more than 20 pages 12 

each.  And then, for your final report, it came 13 

down to two pages, correct? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  That's correct. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  In these two 16 

prior reports, going all the way back to setdown, 17 

and continuing on August 27th, there are a great 18 

many concerns raised, and essentially the -- I 19 

was hoping to work through those to see how they 20 

were ameliorated.   21 
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  It is just surprising, I guess, are 1 

you -- would it be surprising to you to 2 

understand that the public was surprised by the 3 

shift in a seven-foot drop, suddenly 4 

ameliorating all of the issues that were raised 5 

in the prior two reports? 6 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Mr. Otten, 7 

when you refer to "the public," are you referring 8 

to Champlain Street Neighbors? 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 10 

  COMMISSIONER TURNBULL:  Thank you. 11 

  MR. JESICK:  Could you repeat that 12 

question, please?  I'm sorry. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  I guess I 14 

was -- I'll get right into the heart of this. 15 

 There are issues raised in the prior two 16 

reports -- August 27th, 2012, and November 17 

2011 -- that talk about things like on page 1 18 

of the August report, the introduction of a large 19 

hotel and restaurant would go against the intent 20 

of the Reed-Cooke overlay.  21 
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  Isn't it true that there is still 1 

a large hotel and restaurant going in at this 2 

proposed site? 3 

  MR. JESICK:  There is a hotel and 4 

restaurant going in at this site, yes. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Would you define it 6 

as --a 220-room hotel a large hotel? 7 

  MR. JESICK:  I couldn't 8 

characterize it one way or the other. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And is it -- would it 10 

be considered, in your terms, small scale 11 

commercial? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  The application as 13 

presented, together with the proposed text 14 

amendment, are not inconsistent with the 15 

comprehensive plan, which includes the future 16 

land use map. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  And the future land use 18 

map refers to low scale commercial, right, or -- 19 

  MR. JESICK:  It makes up low scale 20 

commercial and moderate density residential. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  And what does that mean 1 

to you? 2 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Mr. Otten, we are 3 

happy to answer questions about anything in any 4 

of our reports directly.  But to do a 5 

speculative -- 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 7 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  -- answer is not 8 

really, you know, constructive. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh, okay.  Doesn't low 10 

scale commercial in your report refer to one- 11 

to three-story commercial buildings? 12 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Can you identify 13 

the page to which you are referring? 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Let's see here.  15 

It's -- I believe it's page 10 of the August 16 

report. 17 

  MR. JESICK:  Can you show me exactly 18 

where on page 10? 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Let's see. I thought it 20 

was there.   21 
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  MR. JESICK:  The last paragraph 1 

defines "low density commercial," the 2 

second-to-last sentence.  And your question is? 3 

 I'm sorry. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Just affirming this is 5 

what your office wrote as understanding low 6 

density commercial. 7 

  MR. JESICK:  That is the language 8 

in the comp plan, which was approved by City 9 

Council. 10 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  It is also 11 

important to understand that that sentence 12 

stands within the entire paragraph, which talks 13 

about that the designation includes both small 14 

business districts that draw from the 15 

surrounding neighborhood to larger business 16 

district uses that draw from a broader market 17 

area. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  And is this area 19 

considered a larger business district?  Is this 20 

Adams Morgan area considered a larger business 21 
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district? 1 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I don't think we 2 

have made any conclusions.  You are querying 3 

us about this definition of the low density 4 

commercial, which is from the comp plan. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't Adams Morgan 6 

considered a neighborhood conservation area by 7 

these reports? 8 

  MR. JESICK:  Portions of the 9 

neighborhood are designated by the generalized 10 

land use map as neighborhood conservation areas. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And part of that is to 12 

protect residential communities, correct?  13 

That designation is designed to protect 14 

residential communities? 15 

  MR. JESICK:  I'm just going to refer 16 

you to the second paragraph on page 10, which 17 

is, again, a quote from the comprehensive plan 18 

which describes what neighborhood conservations 19 

are.  I can read it for you, if you'd like. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Sure.  Thank you. 21 
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  MR. JESICK:  The first sentence 1 

begins, "The guiding philosophy in neighborhood 2 

conservation areas is to conserve and enhance 3 

established neighborhoods.  Limited 4 

development and redevelopment opportunities do 5 

exist within these areas, but they are small 6 

in scale.   7 

  "The diversity of land use and 8 

building types in these areas should be 9 

maintained, and new development and alteration 10 

should be compatible with the existing scale 11 

and architectural character of each area.  12 

Densities and neighborhood conservation areas 13 

are guided by the future land use map." 14 

  Now, when Office of Planning reviews 15 

that statement, we do feel that the proposed 16 

design is compatible with the existing scale 17 

and architectural character of each area. 18 

  I would also note that page 11 of 19 

the report goes on to state that the land use 20 

maps of the plan should be interpreted in 21 
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conjunction with the text of the comprehensive 1 

plan including the city-wide elements and the 2 

area elements. 3 

  So in this PUD, as with any PUD, we 4 

review not just one map, not just another map, 5 

we review the entire comprehensive plan as a 6 

whole. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that -- part of that 8 

is looking at some of the overlays that are in 9 

the area, in this case the Reed-Cooke overlay, 10 

correct? 11 

  MR. JESICK:  Well, that is part of 12 

the zoning regulations, not the comprehensive 13 

plan. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  But they play together, 15 

don't they? 16 

  MR. JESICK:  As part of our review, 17 

we did examine the Reed-Cooke overlay and its 18 

purposes.   19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that sets 20 

this -- the Reed-Cooke overlay set the scale 21 
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of that residential neighborhood on Champlain 1 

Street, correct? 2 

  MR. JESICK:  The zoning regulations 3 

for that area dictate the height and density 4 

of that area.   5 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that particular 6 

overlay speaks to a 40-foot height, unless, of 7 

course, a density bonus is added for providing 8 

affordable housing, correct? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  The overlay, as it's 10 

written currently, limits height in most cases 11 

to 40 feet.   12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is this project 13 

providing housing in any way? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  No, it is not. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, can I 16 

just ask you a question?  This goes back to what 17 

Mr. Turnbull mentioned.  I think you asked the 18 

applicant that.  The record is clear, and now 19 

you asked the Office of Planning that.   20 

  So going along with what my 21 
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colleague said, if you could just refrain from 1 

trying to be duplicative.  And, I mean, maybe 2 

you need assurances from the applicant, Office 3 

of Planning.  And let me also just educate you 4 

on the comprehensive plan. 5 

  We are very well versed on it, and 6 

the five of us up here now we are extremely versed 7 

on it.  We have some authors and finishes of 8 

that plan that are up here now, so this 9 

Commission is very well knowledgeable -- 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- of the 12 

comprehensive plan.  So let's ask a question, 13 

and let's get an answer, and let's move this 14 

thing forward. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  We are laypeople.  We 16 

are trying to understand the comp plan and how 17 

this project impacts that. 18 

  And what the applicant says, if I -- 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  No, no, just -- 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- could just get 21 
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clarity -- 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I just 2 

pointed -- the point, let's go back to asking 3 

questions. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  But I want to get 5 

clarity. 6 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Cross-examination. 7 

 No, no, no.  No.  Just ask questions. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  I keep getting 9 

overruled.  I just want to get clarity. 10 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Just ask a 11 

question.  I'm directing you to 12 

ask -- cross-exam the Office of Planning and 13 

DDOT. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  I can't proceed in 15 

this -- be interrupted. 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You are being 17 

interrupted to bring you back on focus. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, I want to 19 

understand why I'm interrupted.  I just -- 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  No, no.  I'm 21 
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running this hearing.  So what I -- what I have 1 

directed you to do -- 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  I need to get clarity. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- is to -- what I 4 

have directed you to do is to finish asking 5 

questions.  6 

  MR. OTTEN:  But what I heard from 7 

you -- 8 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  What I -- 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- is that -- 10 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  What I have just 11 

directed you to do just now is you asked the 12 

same question.  I'm asking you -- 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  This is supposed to 14 

be an independent arbiter, correct? 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  But you're 16 

asking -- okay.  But I'm asking you -- the record 17 

is clear.  What I'm asking you to do is to ask 18 

cross-examination questions now.  Go ahead and 19 

continue. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it true that the 21 
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Office of Planning is supposed to be an 1 

independent arbiter of the zoning regulations 2 

and the comp plan when it comes to private 3 

projects brought forward in this city? 4 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I'm not sure what 5 

you mean by "independent arbiter."  We provide 6 

recommendations to the Zoning Commission, 7 

interpreting the comprehensive plan and the 8 

zoning regulations. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so that gets us 10 

back -- so we have problems listed in the prior 11 

two reports.  Then, it -- then these problems 12 

disappeared in the last report.  I'm trying to 13 

understand, how does a seven-foot drop, as we 14 

now have heard testified -- it's at the front 15 

of the building because Champlain goes down a 16 

street, correct?  There is a decline on 17 

Champlain Street?  Has OP measured that 18 

decline?  Are you aware of -- 19 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I believe -- 20 

  MR. JESICK:  It's about 13 feet. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Thirteen feet.  So as 1 

you walk down Champlain Street, the building 2 

essentially rises above you another 13 feet when 3 

you get to the bottom of that decline. 4 

  MR. JESICK:  It is 13 feet higher 5 

from the point -- from the ground at that point. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  So if there are all of 7 

these other problems -- for example, there is 8 

a point about setbacks, we heard testimony 9 

earlier there is -- there is no setbacks other 10 

than at the front of the building, that already 11 

existed around the church.   12 

  But this hotel tower -- correct me 13 

if I'm wrong -- it has been stated here in your 14 

report -- that it differs from other hotels and 15 

that there is no significant setback from the 16 

sidewalk and surrounding properties. 17 

  MR. JESICK:  We were not raising 18 

that as an issue with this project. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Didn't you say 20 

that the context and proposal for the present 21 
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application would be unprecedented for the 1 

District in regards to how it sits in this 2 

particular residential community versus other 3 

residential communities?  And that's page 4 of 4 

the August report. 5 

  MR. JESICK:  Can you direct me to 6 

the part of the paragraph that you're referring 7 

to? 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  It is just under 9 

the diagram.  It says, "Hotels in a residential 10 

context."  This doesn't have to do with height, 11 

correct?  This has to do with how a project, 12 

like  a hotel, sits in a residential community, 13 

correct? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  Correct. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  And it does state that 16 

this would be unprecedented in the District, 17 

in the sense of how it is situated on this street, 18 

on this narrow street? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes.  That was, again, 20 

based on the old plan, not the plan that was 21 
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submitted September 10th.   1 

  MR. OTTEN:  So that's what I'm 2 

trying to understand.  The new plan didn't 3 

change in terms of its setting in the residential 4 

community.  The new plan changed in height 5 

alone, correct? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  It changed in height, 7 

which addressed our concerns about context 8 

within the surrounding neighborhood.   9 

  MR. OTTEN:  But this whole 10 

paragraph does not contend with height; it 11 

contends with setbacks and buffers and how it 12 

sits in this residential community, correct? 13 

  MR. JESICK:  I think it -- yes, it 14 

primarily focuses on other examples of other 15 

hotels which do have setbacks. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  That are also in 17 

residential communities? 18 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And doesn't it also 20 

speak to the context of the buildings around 21 
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where this hotel might sit in terms of the 1 

two-story residential building just abutting 2 

it, and across the street from three story 3 

residential buildings? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  Again, we feel the 5 

revised design addressed our concerns. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Did your 7 

concerns -- didn't your concerns also mention 8 

about contrast and scale between the surrounding 9 

buildings and the potential hotel project? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  We feel the revised 11 

design addressed our concerns. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  But in August when this 13 

22-page report was issued, the height at the 14 

southeast corner that directly abuts the 15 

residential community that you expressed 16 

concern about, was actually lower in height, 17 

as testified earlier, than what it is today.  18 

So how can that be squared? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  The overall building 20 

height has been reduced, however.  21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  But the issue about 1 

contrasting scale is actually -- has actually 2 

worsened, has it not? 3 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  How can a building go 5 

up in height next to a residential building that 6 

is two stories tall, go up one story there, and 7 

not further the contrast? 8 

  MR. JESICK:  That is just a small 9 

corner of the building.  The overall building 10 

height has been reduced.  11 

  MR. OTTEN:  But this paragraph 12 

talks about the context and the residential 13 

community.  The other parts of the building, 14 

if I'm not mistaken, touch upon the commercial 15 

buildings along 18th Street, correct, on the 16 

west side? 17 

  MR. JESICK:  Can you repeat the 18 

question, please? 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  The west side of the 20 

proposed hotel tower abuts properties that are, 21 
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according to your map on page 3, abuts properties 1 

that are commercial.  Whereas, in this report 2 

dated August 27, 2012, you are specifically 3 

concerned about the residential context and the 4 

height of that next to these, for example, 5 

two-story buildings just next door.   6 

  So you -- I guess what I'm -- you 7 

just stated to me that the overall height has 8 

been reduced, but the height next to -- that 9 

is for all around the building, particularly 10 

on the commercial side, the west side, but the 11 

height on the residential side from the prior 12 

plan actually was increased.  Again, I'm just 13 

trying to get -- understand that. 14 

  The Office of Planning has chosen 15 

to measure the height from Euclid Street, 16 

correct? 17 

  MR. JESICK:  We did not choose the 18 

measuring point.  That is dictated by the zoning 19 

regulations and the Height Act. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  And on page 5 of your 21 
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August report, August 2012, you have the height 1 

drawn from Columbia Road for purposes of the 2 

Height Act, despite the fact that -- is 3 

that -- that's correct, you have the height drawn 4 

from -- 5 

  MR. JESICK:  That's correct. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  But 98 percent of the 7 

front of this building is on Euclid Street, 8 

correct? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  The Height Act allows 10 

a property owner to derive the allowable height 11 

of their building by whatever road frontages 12 

their property fronts on. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so the Office of 14 

Planning considers that little corner there -- 15 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  -- on Columbia Road.  17 

And that's okay.  Okay. 18 

  There are other issues mentioned. 19 

 You talk about the -- on page 7 of the August 20 

report, and it is also in the setdown report 21 
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from November -- this is essentially 1 

verbatim -- numbers 6 and 8, you talk about how 2 

development on these sort of sites must respect 3 

the broader community context, and adequate 4 

infrastructure capacity should be ensured as 5 

growth occurs.  What kind of analysis was done 6 

around quote/unquote "adequate infrastructure 7 

capacity" given the size of this hotel? 8 

  MR. JESICK:  The Department of 9 

Transportation analyzed the traffic generated 10 

by the hotel.  Also, the D.C. Water analyzed 11 

their infrastructure in the area and found it 12 

to be adequate, although it might potentially 13 

require upgrades from the applicant.  But not 14 

to the extent that the project could not be 15 

built. 16 

  We also requested comments from 17 

other government agencies, but comments were 18 

received from DDOT and D.C. Water.   19 

  MR. OTTEN:  So D.C. WASA said that 20 

at some point in the future there might have 21 
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to be a real look at this to see how a hotel 1 

this size taps into the current infrastructure, 2 

correct? 3 

  MR. JESICK:  They will do a thorough 4 

review at the time of building permit.  This 5 

was just a preliminary examination. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't this the 7 

opportunity for the Zoning Commission to write 8 

into the final order any -- and also just to 9 

keep a playing level field for the developer 10 

to understand what they might be responsible 11 

for in terms of upgrades to infrastructure? 12 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm going to rule 13 

that question out of order.  Next question. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Doesn't the comp plan 15 

speak to this in policy IN-6.1.3, developer 16 

contributions, where it says -- I don't 17 

even -- you probably know about this.  Do you 18 

know about this policy in the comp plan, 19 

requiring that private developers fund 20 

necessary upgrading of existing utilities and 21 
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existing infrastructure? 1 

  MR. JESICK:  If upgrading of the 2 

D.C. Water utilities is necessary, that will 3 

be required of the applicant. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And at what point is 5 

that looked at? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  During the building 7 

permit stage. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Not at the zoning stage 9 

when the comp plan -- 10 

  MR. JESICK:  Not at the zoning 11 

stage. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Interesting.  How is 13 

the Office of Planning coordinating this -- the 14 

funding of the infrastructure improvements 15 

here? 16 

  MR. JESICK:  We do not coordinate 17 

the funding of infrastructure improvements. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  You are the Mayor's 19 

designated planning agent in the city, correct? 20 

  MR. JESICK:  Correct. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Doesn't the comp plan 1 

speak to infrastructure and new development and 2 

policies about coordinating infrastructure 3 

improvements around major projects like this 4 

one? 5 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  If you're talking 6 

about overall capital improvements planning, 7 

that is something -- that is on a much broader 8 

context than an individual project, and we did 9 

not testify to that scope.    However, in 10 

this case, the project -- if they need to upgrade 11 

the infrastructure to service their hotel and 12 

make sure that their users have adequate water, 13 

fire protection, they will do that as part of 14 

the building permit without coordination 15 

through the Office of Planning. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  There's is an action 17 

item in the -- I guess I'm trying to understand 18 

that, because there is an action item in the 19 

comp plan that talks about coordination of 20 

infrastructure upgrades and establishing a 21 
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central repository for data and schedules for 1 

planned upgrades.  Did you all look at that when 2 

you were preparing your report? 3 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  That is referring 4 

to a capital improvements program, which is a 5 

city-wide type of improvement, not a project 6 

requirement. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Did you look at what 8 

might -- 9 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  No.  We did not 10 

testify, nor did we look at a city-wide capital 11 

improvement program. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  And what -- didn't D.C. 13 

WASA inform you of an issue at the corner of 14 

Champlain and Kalorama just south of this 15 

project where there was a major water 16 

infrastructure break back in November of 2011? 17 

  MR. JESICK:  We didn't testify to 18 

that. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  But you did receive an 20 

email from D.C. WASA about that, correct? 21 
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  MR. JESICK:  I believe D.C. WASA 1 

received an email from a citizen about that.  2 

I did not receive an email from D.C. WASA about 3 

that issue. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Environmental 5 

assessment -- is the Office of Planning ensuring 6 

compliance with the District of Columbia 7 

Environmental Policy Act pursuant to the comp 8 

plan? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  That is another item 10 

that is reviewed at the building permit stage. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Doesn't that -- doesn't 12 

the comp plan speak to how the process should 13 

ensure that such information is available when 14 

a development is proposed and is available to 15 

the public and decision-makers before any 16 

decision is made? 17 

  MR. JESICK:  I believe the record 18 

includes information about the environmental 19 

commitments for this project. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  Are you sure, or -- you 21 
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said you believe. 1 

  MR. JESICK:  I believe. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Has there been 3 

any analysis done of the pollution from the 4 

vehicles using the porte cochere along Champlain 5 

Street? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Do you have the 8 

plans in front of you, by chance? 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  While he is getting 10 

that together, let me take a break.  It's 9:30. 11 

 Let's do an assessment.   12 

  Mr. Otten, you are probably going 13 

to take -- since you can't tell me about how 14 

much longer you are going to take -- I'm going 15 

to anticipate you will probably be about another 16 

two hours.  So what I would like to do, Ms. 17 

Schellin, is make sure everyone can come back 18 

tomorrow night.  We are going to try to do this, 19 

but if we can't I think January -- or do we have 20 

something in between? 21 
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  MS. SCHELLIN:  I actually checked 1 

the calendar.  We have a cancellation October 2 

22nd.  So worst case we could do it then. 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let me ask my 4 

colleagues.  Are we okay with tomorrow night, 5 

since we've got -- we will be here anyway.  It 6 

will be quicker.  Or we would like to try to 7 

do the 23rd -- 22nd?  Is everybody -- okay.  8 

Okay.  So those Nats tickets you have you can 9 

just give them to me, and, if I'm not here, that's 10 

where I'll be. 11 

  MR. HENSON:  Commissioners, I'm 12 

sorry to interrupt, I'm not sure that DDOT would 13 

be able to answer cross-examination if it 14 

extends to another night, if that's -- that's 15 

what it would take. 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So even if we 17 

did -- if we didn't go tomorrow night, if we 18 

went on the 22nd, you would be able to come back? 19 

  MR. HENSON:  We could make it the 20 

22nd.  I don't -- if it extends and someone wants 21 
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to cross-exam until tomorrow night, I don't know 1 

that we can make it. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Mr. Otten, 3 

do you think you'll finish cross tonight? 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  I hope so.  I hope so. 5 

 I'll try. 6 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Tomorrow night is a 8 

little tricky for me personally. 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  So we are 10 

going to -- we are going to meet tomorrow night. 11 

 Okay.  So -- 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  There are debates going 13 

on. 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You know what?  15 

That is true.  But we are going to go on with 16 

the hearing, because -- we are going to have 17 

to move forward.  I'll be up with CNN at 3:00 18 

in the morning looking at it.  But anyway, yeah, 19 

we are going to go ahead and proceed.  We do 20 

need to, because our schedule is tight, and 21 
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that's the -- 1 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  We may still need the 2 

22nd, depending on how tomorrow night goes.  3 

I mean, there is still a lot to cover. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Well, we'll 5 

do some tomorrow night, and see if we have to 6 

go into the 22nd.  Okay.  We are all straight? 7 

 Everybody on -- but tomorrow night, if they 8 

get here, what, about 7:15? 9 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  Yes.  I'd say no 10 

later than that. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  If you get here at 12 

7:15, we'll start tomorrow night at 7:15. 13 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  7:15.  Well, 14 

immediately following the other hearings, in 15 

case we are not finished at 7:15.  We should 16 

be. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  7:15, or should we 18 

say 7:00? 19 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  Let's say 7:00. 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  7:00 or immediately 21 
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following our hearings, which I believe, from 1 

what I'm being told, will go relatively quickly 2 

tomorrow.  So it's 7:00 or immediately 3 

following -- we're going to either start at 7:00 4 

or as soon as we finish after 7:00 we will start. 5 

 So if it's 7:15, but be here -- please be here 6 

at 7:00.  Okay? 7 

  Now, the issue with DDOT not -- well, 8 

let's see if we can get through that.  Okay.   9 

  All right.  Anybody have any 10 

questions?  Any of the parties?  Applicant?  11 

Any other -- 12 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, just 13 

very quickly.  So 7:00 tomorrow.  And if we 14 

don't finish tomorrow, then the 22nd. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  The 22nd.  And if 16 

we don't finish the 22nd, it's January. 17 

  MR. GLASGOW:  We will be ready to 18 

finish. 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  All right. 20 

 Okay.  Mr. Otten, you may begin. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Okay.  So 1 

we were -- we were looking at page 75 in the 2 

September -- 3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I'm sorry.  Let 4 

me -- I hate to interrupt you, but let's do this. 5 

 My colleague has just mentioned a good point. 6 

 Because DDOT is not going to be here tomorrow, 7 

can we shift to your cross-examination of DDOT 8 

and put that next question -- I know this breaks 9 

you up -- 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  No, that's all right. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  -- but shift that 12 

next question to -- do you have many more of 13 

Office of Planning?  Mr. Otten, do you have many 14 

more questions of the Office of Planning? 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Yes. 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Can we 17 

shift -- 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  The biggest project in 19 

Adams Morgan history. 20 

  COMMISSIONER MAY:  Mr. Chair, if I 21 
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could just inform that OP has issues tomorrow 1 

night, too, so I think we've got to try to finish 2 

them both tonight.  I don't think it makes a 3 

difference. 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Probably won't 5 

finish tonight.  Let's do this.  Let's just 6 

forget -- we'll just deal with what we have on 7 

schedule.  Let me just say this.  We're going 8 

to deal with what we have for tomorrow night, 9 

come back on -- we're going to reschedule 10 

this -- I mean, we are going to continue on the 11 

22nd.   12 

  Can everybody make the 22nd?  For 13 

those who have been inconvenienced for a few 14 

times, I am hearing that will be better.  Okay. 15 

 But -- no, what the problem is, the 16 

cross-examination, and I cannot cut it off.  17 

So what is happening is the 18 

cross-examination -- I'm trying to give Mr. 19 

Otten as much time as he needs to cross, as long 20 

as we're on point. 21 
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  Apparently, both of our people who 1 

are being crossed with DDOT and Office of 2 

Planning will not be able to make it tomorrow 3 

night.  So in order for them -- because it looks 4 

like cross is going to go on.  He has plenty 5 

of questions of Office of Planning, and I don't 6 

know how many he has for DDOT. 7 

  So, in that case, we are going to 8 

not meet tomorrow night on this case.  We are 9 

going to meet on the 22nd at 6:30.  Or should 10 

we move it to 6:00? 11 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  6:00 is fine with me, 12 

as long as the Commissioners are -- 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Everybody? 14 

  MS. SCHELLIN:  -- good. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Commissioners?  16 

Thirty minutes might help us.  So let's move 17 

to October 22nd at 6:00 p.m. in this hearing 18 

room.  We will continue wherever we leave off 19 

at tonight at that point.  Okay?  And everybody 20 

will be able to make it, at least from what they 21 
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know at this point. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 2 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  So October 22nd at 3 

6:00 p.m.  Any comments?  Questions? 4 

  (No response.) 5 

  Okay.  Thank you.  Mr. Otten, if 6 

you could continue. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  Okay.  So 8 

I appreciate your patience in this.  This is 9 

obviously a project we are all concerned about. 10 

  Page 75 of the plans, it's just a 11 

rendering of the porte cochere, and I wanted 12 

to look at that vis-a-vis the comp plan and air 13 

pollution.  Obviously, there is going to be a 14 

lot of cars going in and out of there.   15 

  Do you get -- did you do any analysis 16 

as the Office of Planning to -- vis-a-vis the 17 

comp plan to look at what kind of air pollution 18 

might be coming out of that area and into the 19 

neighboring property? 20 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  The noise is 1 

also, obviously, an issue, and that was -- I 2 

believe that was raised in your report in terms 3 

of rooftop issues.  And now that the height is 4 

lower, doesn't that bring the noise that might 5 

be happening up on that rooftop even further 6 

closer to the residents, surrounding residents? 7 

  MR. JESICK:  The noise would be one 8 

story closer.  That's correct. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  How involved was the 10 

Office of Planning with the Reed-Cooke 11 

neighborhood agreement around noise issues? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  We were not involved. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Did the 14 

Reed-Cooke Neighborhood Association ever inform 15 

you of how much discussion that agreement was 16 

having with the general community? 17 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  That's beyond the 18 

scope of our testimony. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So isn't it the 20 

case that the comp plan does refer to reduction 21 
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in vehicle noise and looking at land use 1 

compatibility with noise? 2 

  MR. JESICK:  I would have to look 3 

at the comp plan to see if that is the case.  4 

  MR. OTTEN:  I'm sorry.  I've got a 5 

lot of papers everywhere. 6 

  Okay.  Okay.  Doesn't your report 7 

on page 6 refer to the applicant should provide 8 

more info on how the roof would be used? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that the subsequent 11 

two-page report in September says that you are 12 

satisfied with the Reed-Cooke agreement, 13 

correct, in terms of roof noise and activities? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  Correct. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Is this a vacant 16 

lot where the proposed hotel is -- would be 17 

located, is that a vacant -- particularly the 18 

church parcel? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  I'm not sure how you 20 

define "vacant."  I believe the church still 21 
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uses -- the congregation uses the church 1 

building to some extent, I understand. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 3 

  MR. JESICK:  And then there is, of 4 

course, the City Paper Building. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Was there an analysis 6 

done of how many local jobs would be displaced 7 

by this project?  You mentioned the City Paper 8 

Building.  There is other uses there. 9 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Did your analysis of 11 

this project look at details of the economic 12 

development element in the comp plan?  For 13 

example, the comp plan talks about hotels as 14 

a food service and accommodation under Table 15 

7.3 in the economic development element. 16 

  That hotels, including food 17 

services and accommodation, is some of 18 

the -- creating some of the greatest amount of 19 

new jobs in the District.   20 

  MR. JESICK:  We reviewed the 21 
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comprehensive plan as a whole, and we are 1 

satisfied that the application is not 2 

inconsistent with the policies of the 3 

comprehensive plan. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Doesn't the comp plan 5 

talk about diversification of types of jobs 6 

being created by new projects, new large 7 

projects? 8 

  MR. JESICK:  I believe it does, but 9 

I don't know that off the top of my head. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is this considered a 11 

retail project?  It's a commercial project.  12 

But of the commercial types, is this considered 13 

a retail project? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  We would consider it 15 

a commercial project with a retail component. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Retail component.  But 17 

it is certainly not a small and locally owned 18 

business, correct? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  I'm not sure where the 20 

owner resides. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Would you define it as 1 

a small business? 2 

  MR. JESICK:  I wouldn't 3 

characterize it. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And isn't it 5 

true that the comp plan talks about encouraging 6 

the retention and development of small and 7 

minority businesses? 8 

  MR. JESICK:  I believe it does. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And didn't your office 10 

in the summer of 2012 receive a letter from small 11 

businesses, minority-owned businesses, along 12 

Columbia Road just around the block from where 13 

this hotel might be located? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  And what kind of 16 

response did those folks get? 17 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I believe that is 18 

beyond the scope of our testimony.  Did 19 

we -- unless you find it in our report, and then 20 

we're happy to answer it.  But I don't believe 21 
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we testified to that -- to communications -- 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Your report -- 2 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  -- we received 3 

throughout the summer. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Throughout your report 5 

it talks about small and low scale business 6 

development as pertaining to the comp plan and 7 

zoning regs.  So I'm just inquiring -- I'm 8 

affirming that you did get a letter from the 9 

small businesses in the surrounding area, 10 

correct? 11 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I don't believe 12 

we have any reference in our reports or testimony 13 

to communications we received throughout the 14 

summer. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  It's either yes or no. 16 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I'm happy to 17 

answer questions about any of our testimony in 18 

our written record here. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Are you aware of 20 

concerns of local businesses being displaced 21 
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through -- by and of this project? 1 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I'm aware that 2 

you represent that there are. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  That I represent that 4 

there are. 5 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Yes. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Can I give you this 7 

letter now, so you can see those? 8 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  No, sir. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh, no?  Okay.  So I 10 

can't put this on the record?  Okay. 11 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  When you do your 12 

presentation, you can give us everything that 13 

you've talked about that you want to present 14 

at that time. 15 

  COMMISSIONER MILLER:  I 16 

would -- since I haven't spoken yet, I would 17 

just encourage you to get to wrapping up and 18 

focusing the questions on the testimony 19 

that -- and the report that the OP did and DDOT 20 

did present, and so that you can get, sooner 21 
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than you would otherwise, to the presentation 1 

where you can make all of these arguments instead 2 

of trying to use the cross-examination process 3 

to make a presentation.  I just would encourage 4 

you to -- 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Are my questions 6 

presentational?  They are.  Oh, really?  Well, 7 

let me go on then, unless -- I mean, please, 8 

cut me off if they are presentational.  Please 9 

do. 10 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Mr. Otten, please 11 

proceed. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you, Chair. 13 

  Doesn't the comp plan policy, 14 

ED-3.2.6, refer to commercial displacement and 15 

the attempts at -- for the city to avoid such 16 

displacement of small and local businesses? 17 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I don't believe 18 

any of our testimony got to the heart of 19 

displacement based on this project. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  But isn't that 21 
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something that the Office of Planning typically 1 

has to analyze in projects this big? 2 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Our report this 3 

evening is focused on this project, and our 4 

report and testimony and our analysis of the 5 

comp plan focused on this project on this site 6 

in this land. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  And so does your report 8 

discuss any effects on the immediate commercial 9 

small and minority businesses? 10 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  There is no 11 

displacement of businesses from this project 12 

on this -- 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Not from this project, 14 

but of the immediate -- 15 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  -- within this 16 

project.  And that is the course of our 17 

testimony. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  So your report does not 19 

refer in any way to the immediate impacted 20 

businesses? 21 
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  MS. STEINGASSER:  Our report 1 

analyzes this project, and there is no 2 

displacement on the site on this project. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  That's not my question, 4 

though, but I'll move on.  You got it. 5 

  Was there any analysis of how this 6 

project works in with action, ED-3.2.8, 7 

anti-displacement strategies? 8 

  MR. GLASGOW:  Mr. Chairman, I would 9 

like to object to this line.  There has been 10 

no predicate that there is any displacement on 11 

this site.  The City Paper Building sold it.  12 

It has their buildings under contract.  The 13 

other part of the property is the church 14 

property.  There is no displacement. 15 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Mr. 16 

Glasgow, he is now crossing the Office of 17 

Planning.  We got your point the first time that 18 

was mentioned.  It's not -- none of this is 19 

falling -- definitely is included in what you 20 

are doing.  I'm sure if the Office of Planning 21 
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thinks that is not an appropriate question for 1 

them, they will move to -- we will move -- they 2 

won't ask it, and we will move to the next 3 

question.  Okay? 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Ms. Steingasser, 6 

did you all need to answer that? 7 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I think we would 8 

answer no. 9 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Next 10 

question. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  I lost that question. 12 

 So are you saying that small businesses aren't 13 

being displaced by this project? 14 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  The answer was no 15 

to that question. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 17 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Next question. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is the City Paper a 19 

small business pursuant to -- 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  That -- let me ask 21 
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this, because I may have missed that, because 1 

I do miss things.  Did you all testify to the 2 

City Paper? 3 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  No, sir.  We did 4 

not. 5 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Next 6 

question. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  I lost the question.  8 

So are you saying that small businesses aren't 9 

being displaced by this project? 10 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  The answer--the 11 

answer was no to that question. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 13 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Next question. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is the City Paper a 15 

small business pursuant to zoning reg-- 16 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  That--let me ask 17 

this, cause I may have missed that.  Cause I 18 

do miss things.  Did you all testify to the City 19 

Paper? 20 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  No, sir. We did 21 
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not. 1 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  Next 2 

question. 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is a building being 4 

demolished to be replaced by the hotel tower 5 

in this case that you're aware of? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Your reports go 8 

into economic development and the elements in 9 

the Comp Plan regarding that, and how it promotes 10 

one particular policy in terms of hospitality, 11 

supporting the hospitality industry. 12 

  Does your report--we don't see your 13 

report looking at the Policy ED 4.2.7, living 14 

wage jobs.  Is that correct?  Under that 15 

particular paragraph on page eight of the August 16 

submission. 17 

  MR. JESICK:  We reviewed the 18 

application against the Comp Plan as a whole 19 

and we feel it's not inconsistent with the 20 

policies of the Comp Plan. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  And that was in the 1 

September filing. But up until that point it 2 

was inconsistent, so the reduction--so is it 3 

the case that reducing it nine feet somehow 4 

solved all of these other issues? 5 

  MR. JESICK:  It was the change in 6 

the design, the proposed text amendment, and 7 

the agreement with the neighborhood. 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Okay.  Doesn't 9 

your reports talk about the desire to propose 10 

projects or support projects that, quote, 11 

unquote, protect, maintain and improve the 12 

residential character of neighborhoods? 13 

  MS. STEINGASSER:   Could you 14 

identify where that is in the report. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Point eight on page 16 

seven. 17 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Yes, it is point 18 

eight on page seven. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And you referred to how 20 

neighborhoods like Adams Morgan are unique and 21 
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desirable places to live, but these qualities 1 

can lead to development and redevelopment 2 

pressures that threaten these very qualities; 3 

correct? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  That is an accurate 5 

summation of that one section of our report. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  So when people do raise 7 

concerns about being displaced, that would speak 8 

to that point in your report; correct? The 9 

displacement of the unique qualities of any-- 10 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  I think we've 11 

answered the issue of displacement. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right, but I'm talking 13 

in particular to that point. I forgot about that 14 

point.  You mentioned how there are unique 15 

qualities in neighborhoods like Adams Morgan, 16 

and--and that development pressures threaten 17 

these.  In what way--in what ways did you--did 18 

you see how this project was threatening? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  We felt that a building 20 

that was too tall for this setting might threaten 21 
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the character of the neighborhood. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And--and can you help 2 

us with defining character.  What do mean by 3 

"character" in this particular project? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  It's--it's hard to 5 

define. It's just the overall sense of place, 6 

of Reed-Cooke Overlay in Adams Morgan. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  And does the sense of 8 

place include the people that live there and 9 

the small businesses that operate there? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  In the August report, 12 

on page nine, you speak about new construction 13 

should be consistent with prevailing heights 14 

and densities in a neighborhood.  At the 72 feet 15 

we presume now, that is corresponding to the 16 

prevailing heights in the neighborhood. 17 

  Is that--is that what the final 18 

report is ultimately saying? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  We feel that that 20 

height is not inconsistent with the character 21 
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of the neighborhood. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And then looking back 2 

at the map you provided, on page two, are there 3 

an other buildings on that map that are 4 

highlighted, that are actually listed here, that 5 

are seven stories? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  The building across 7 

Champlain Street is approximately equivalent 8 

in feet, if not in stories. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that one--and that 10 

building was built before the zoning regs? 11 

  MR. JESICK:  I'm not aware of when 12 

it was constructed. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  And that's the--that's 14 

a building on the thoroughfare of Columbia Road? 15 

  MR. JESICK:  No. That's the 16 

building at the corner of Euclid and Champlain 17 

Streets. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh, that's the one 19 

that's six stories plus basement? 20 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  On the map?  Okay.  But 1 

the other prevailing heights here, it looks like 2 

it's three to--three--three to four. Some say 3 

two.  Some say two to three.  Is that correct? 4 

  5 

  MR. JESICK:  You've read the map 6 

accurately. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Thank you.  The arrow 8 

along 18th Street refers to three to four stories 9 

commercial, and that also follow sup on Columbia 10 

Road past Champlain Street. Correct? 11 

  Three to four stories commercial? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  You're correct. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  But isn't it the case 14 

that those buildings have residential 15 

components, that it's--it's storefronts, and 16 

then above them are generally residential? 17 

  MR. JESICK:  I'm not familiar with 18 

the exact uses in the buildings. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  When you're 20 

talking about sharp changes in physical 21 
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development patterns, can you describe for 1 

us--is that the building as a whole, or is that, 2 

you know, where the side of a building meets 3 

another building? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  The building as a 5 

whole. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Building as a whole. 7 

Okay.  You describe on page nine the Reed-Cooke 8 

Overlay, talking about 1400.2, to protect 9 

current housing in the area, and provide for 10 

the development of new housing.  And 11 

maintaining heights and densities at 12 

appropriate levels, and encouraging small-scale 13 

business that won't affect, adversely affect 14 

the residential community.  That's the gist of 15 

the Reed-Cooke Overlay? 16 

  MR. JESICK:  That is the beginning 17 

of the purposes of the Reed-Cooke Overlay. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  And as you testified, 19 

there's no new housing associated with this 20 

project; correct? 21 
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  MR. JESICK:  The Reed-Cooke Overlay 1 

does not require housing. 2 

  MR. OTTEN:  That there is no 3 

housing, particularly with this project? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  That's correct.  5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Did you do any 6 

analysis about the fiscal pressures mentioned 7 

on point eight, development pressures, how that 8 

might affect property values in the area? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  And didn't the ANC write 11 

a letter to your office back in 2011, basically 12 

inquiring about how a project of this size may 13 

impact local rents and affordable housing? 14 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Again, we're 15 

not--our testimony is based on our--our report 16 

of what's in the record before the Zoning 17 

Commission. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right.  So-- 19 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Not what 20 

communications have happened with the Office 21 
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of Planning over the last four or five years. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  But you note in the 2 

record--you note in this August report, 3 

components of the Comp Plan and the Reed-Cooke 4 

Overlay, that's specifically talked to. 5 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Uh-huh. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Protecting affordable 7 

housing, and housing in general, provide 8 

development of new housing.  How-- 9 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Well, we quote 10 

the objectives of the Reed-Cooke Overlay, which 11 

is a direct quote out of the zoning regulations, 12 

and the protection of current housing is not 13 

at the exclusion of all other uses. It's one 14 

of the objectives.  I don't think we testified 15 

to it, that it's just-- 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  But as a American 17 

Institute certified planner-- 18 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Uh-huh. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  --isn't that the key 20 

priority in any planning project?  You look, 21 
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right now, and particularly here, in the 1 

city--isn't it a key priority of the city right 2 

now to protect and expand affordable housing? 3 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  As well as jobs. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right. 5 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  As well as--I 6 

wouldn't say it is at the exclusion of all other 7 

uses. The financial health of the District's 8 

very--very diverse. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  So when you receive a 10 

letter from the ANC asking about the threat-- 11 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  Again, that's 12 

beyond the scope of--of our report and 13 

testimony. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  But you did receive an 15 

ANC letter; correct? 16 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  We've received 17 

many--hundreds and hundreds of communications, 18 

over the last several years, about this case. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  And-- 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  She--I think she 21 
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has answered that question, and I think you have 1 

beat it.  So let's move to the next question. 2 

 We understand about-- 3 

  MR. OTTEN:  By Great Weight-- 4 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Let's move to the 5 

next question. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  I am. 7 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Thank you.  8 

  MR. OTTEN:  By Great Weight, you 9 

responded to the ANC; correct? per the Great 10 

Weight Law of the District of Columbia? 11 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  As I believe I 12 

stated, that's beyond the scope of what we've 13 

testified here tonight.  I mean, the point of 14 

the cross-examination is to focus on the 15 

testimony we've given-- 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right. 17 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  --and what's in 18 

the record. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Well, that's--I'm 20 

trying to square that between the notice that 21 
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the Office of Planning received and the reports 1 

that you were talking about, and talking about 2 

housing and-- 3 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  But our report 4 

and testimony are regarding our recommendation 5 

to the Zoning Commission of what the Applicant 6 

filed, and so that's what we're happy to answer 7 

anything about--about the application-- 8 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right. 9 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  --and about our 10 

reports and about our testimony this evening. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  So just for 12 

clarity's sake, there is--your reports don't 13 

analyze the potential fiscal pressures on the 14 

surrounding housing and small businesses; 15 

correct? 16 

  MS. STEINGASSER:  We've said no. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  And it doesn't analyze 18 

the types of jobs, in terms of living wage jobs. 19 

 It just is-- 20 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  You asked that 21 
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earlier, and I think they told you--they 1 

answered that earlier.  Cause you asked that 2 

specific question of it being in the Comp Plan 3 

or whatever.  But that question I know was just 4 

asked. 5 

  And let me just make a suggestion. 6 

  Mr. James, you might want to assist 7 

him in his cross-examination.  You all 8 

obviously know each other, I believe, and you 9 

do such an efficient job in patterning your 10 

questions, so you may want to help Mr.--I'm 11 

sorry, it's getting late--Otten, and help him, 12 

because he says he's a lay person, and that's 13 

what we are about in this city, is helping each 14 

other.  So anyway, I just threw that out there. 15 

 It might not help him tonight, but just help 16 

him-- 17 

  MR. JAMES:  In fact, he's got his 18 

own representation, and I have mine for KCA. 19 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  I agree, but I mean 20 

you might want to, since you all--you passed 21 
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him a note earlier helping him.  So you might 1 

want to help him formulate his questions with 2 

cross-examination.  That did not go unnoticed. 3 

 Okay. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Yeah.  5 

Champlain Street Neighbors is not associated 6 

with the Kalorama Citizens Association. 7 

  This project does fall within the 8 

mid city limit, mid city area of the District; 9 

correct? 10 

  MR. JESICK:  Correct. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And it does note--that 12 

this element does note that it's--it's the heart 13 

of the city's Latino community; correct? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  I don't know. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Has the Office of 16 

Planning done any analysis with respect to this 17 

project, and broader planning issues around it, 18 

regarding the soaring rents in the--in this 19 

particular mid city element? 20 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Has the Office of 1 

Planning looked at the--well, you all recently 2 

released a 2010 Census Report; correct?  In July 3 

of 2012? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  I don't know. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  The--did the 6 

Office of Planning pursue any incentives or 7 

benefits around--for the small businesses in 8 

the surrounding community during the--what will 9 

be a serious construction phase of this project? 10 

 Did you look at that at all? 11 

  MR. JESICK:  We evaluated the 12 

amenities package that has been presented. 13 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  To the 14 

amenities, your report about jobs, did you 15 

notice how the number of jobs had significantly 16 

dropped off from the prior--from the time that 17 

it was announced at the set-down hearing to the 18 

current numbers? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  I'm not aware of what 20 

report about jobs you're discussing. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  The--well, it's 1 

Exhibit--it's in the record.  We can point to 2 

that.  But what number of jobs were you aware 3 

of that this project would create? 4 

  MR. JESICK:  The Applicant has 5 

testified to that.  I believe it was 290. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Did you look at the 7 

amenities as a form of incentives for achieving 8 

the goals and policies of the Comp Plan? 9 

  MR. JESICK:  We reviewed the 10 

proffered amenities. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  And you're okay with the 12 

proffered amenities now by the September report, 13 

in terms of balancing the equities here? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  Yes. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  But yet, on August 27th, 16 

just a week before that, significant additional 17 

details needed for some of the items in order 18 

to complete an evaluation.  That's on page 19 

seventeen.  What was that significant 20 

additional detail? 21 
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  MR. JESICK:  Some detail was worked 1 

out in the Reed-Cooke Neighborhood Association 2 

agreement.  We're still seeking some additional 3 

detail from the Applicant. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  What kind of detail are 5 

you seeking at this point from the Applicant? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  We would like to know 7 

the exact breakdown of the proffers that they 8 

are providing for the local schools . 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Did your reports ever 10 

refer to concerns around the registration desk 11 

location? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  We were concerned 13 

about the registration desk location when we 14 

believed it was located on the Champlain Street 15 

side. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't it the case that 17 

the registration desk is still on the Champlain 18 

Street side of the building? 19 

  MR. JESICK:  I believe the main 20 

registration desk is near the Euclid Street 21 
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side. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  And what were--what 2 

were your concerns around that? 3 

  MR. JESICK:  We were concerned 4 

about traffic on Champlain Street; but those 5 

issues have been resolved. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  In your August 7 

report, the Metropolitan Police Department, in 8 

particular, the lieutenant in Adams Morgan 9 

community, gave his general sense of the 10 

project.  Do you recall?  What--what was the 11 

spirit of what he was saying there? 12 

  MR. JESICK:  I can't really 13 

interpret their comments.  I think they're in 14 

the record to be read. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Page--in the 16 

set-down report, on the last page, sixteen, you 17 

say--or the report says if this is set down, 18 

the Office of Planning will refer to the 19 

following government agencies who will review 20 

and comment.  Yet today, we're only hearing a 21 
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few of those have commented. 1 

  Have you heard anything from, for 2 

example, the Department of Environment? 3 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  Department of 5 

Employment Services? 6 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  DPW? 8 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 9 

  MR. OTTEN:  Department of Small and 10 

Local Business Development? 11 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  Fire and Emergency 13 

Medical Services Department? 14 

  MR. JESICK:  No. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  And the other two you 16 

have.  Okay.  Thank you.  I'll move on to DDOT. 17 

 Thank you for your time.  Thank you.  Excuse 18 

me.   19 

  Okay.  Good evening.  I was looking 20 

at your report. It mentions ten bus lines serve 21 
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the immediate vicinity.  Do you--do you know 1 

which bus lines those are? 2 

  MR. HENSON:  I don't--I don't think 3 

our report actually--I'm looking at it--the 4 

Applicant's may have but I don't think ours did. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Oh, I'm sorry.  That is 6 

the Applicant's report to you.  Did you review 7 

those bus lines?  Like did those numbers work 8 

out? 9 

  MR. HENSON:  We did review it as an 10 

agency. 11 

  MR. WHITE: I don't recall the exact 12 

number, but more or less, that number was about 13 

right. 14 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And more or 15 

less, DDOT has noted in the public record that 16 

traffic issues and parking issues in Adams 17 

Morgan is--is an issue; correct? 18 

  MR. WHITE: We know anecdotally, of 19 

course, that parking is--is an issue.  I mean, 20 

we did not ask for a parking study. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  No parking study. 1 

  MR. WHITE: But we have heard that 2 

there are traffic issues at Adams Morgan at 3 

certain times of the day; yes. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And isn't that why there 5 

was serious discussions in--just before 2010, 6 

there were several meetings about traffic issues 7 

and community meetings regarding traffic 8 

concerns in Adams Morgan?  Do you recall that? 9 

  MR. WHITE:  I don't. I'm not sure 10 

what that has to do with our report. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  There's a difference 12 

between hotel guests and retail patrons of this 13 

site, as shown in--in the Applicant's report. 14 

    Would it be true to say that trips 15 

generated for hotel guests is a percentage 16 

of--of the rooms rented? 17 

  MR. WHITE:  Are you referring to 18 

occupancy level? 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Right. 20 

  MR. WHITE:  Well, sure-- 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  A percentage of the 1 

occupancies sets the trip generation. 2 

  MR. WHITE:  That's--that's--that's 3 

correct.  It's--it's part of it.  I believe the 4 

Applicant assumed 100 percent occupancy in their 5 

estimation. 6 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  And the retail 7 

patrons are a different set of trips; correct? 8 

 People going to the spa and the gym? 9 

  MR. WHITE:  They can be.  They can 10 

also be hotel guests. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  It seems there was a 12 

split there. 13 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. It's referred to 14 

as internal capture.  Basically people that are 15 

already visitors to the hotel will also 16 

patronize the restaurant and bar.  They'll 17 

represent a portion of that trip generated by 18 

the bar itself, for example. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Got it.  Doesn't the 20 

Applicant's traffic study presume that someone 21 
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and their buddy would be going to the bar 1 

together, instead of one person in a taxi to 2 

go to the bar?  It's--it's two people per 3 

vehicle to the retail element? 4 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes; it does. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  It does. So in reality, 6 

if--if I just wanted to meet my friend at--at 7 

the bar, at the hotel, it--it would--and--and 8 

it could, in essence, double the amount of trips 9 

if--if it was counted as individuals? 10 

  MR. WHITE:  In your scenario, yes. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Isn't the issue around 12 

tour buses "up in the air" at this point? 13 

  MR. HENSON:  Can you be more 14 

specific? 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  There's no set 16 

determination on where buses and large modal 17 

transport will park, rest, unload, at this stage 18 

in the process? 19 

  MR. HENSON:  Correct. 20 

  MR. OTTEN:  And doesn't the Comp 21 
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Plan discuss the importance of that analysis 1 

because of how it might affect surrounding 2 

traffic? 3 

  MR. HENSON:  I'm not sure what the 4 

Comp Plan discusses in that perspective.  We 5 

have regulations regarding motor carriers that 6 

we adhere to and plan for. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  But at this stage it's 8 

still in discussion? 9 

  MR. HENSON:  Correct. 10 

  MR. OTTEN:  How far along would you 11 

say are you on that discussion? 12 

  MR. HENSON:  Those decisions are 13 

made in the permitting phase, so similar to some 14 

of the other discussions we've had 15 

with--concerning D.C. Water, curbside use, 16 

issues are made. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Taxis.  Thank you. 18 

Okay. So at this stage then-- 19 

  MR. HENSON:  And public space 20 

permitting. 21 
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  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  I appreciate 1 

that. 2 

  Pedestrian safety is obviously a key 3 

concern of DDOT's; correct? 4 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. 5 

  MR. OTTEN:  Does it bother you that 6 

there's no sense from the Applicant's report 7 

of crosswalks, I mean visually, at least showing 8 

where--where crosswalks are and the potential 9 

interaction between pedestrians and as 10 

testified earlier? 11 

  MR. HENSON:  Not at this stage 12 

because that--the--the details of the design 13 

of the public space, including the roadways, 14 

are details that are discussed in the public 15 

space permitting process and generally not at 16 

the zoning process. 17 

  MR. OTTEN:  Speaking of public 18 

space, has DDOT been in on any of the meetings 19 

regarding Unity Park as part of--of this kind 20 

a central island in the middle of all these 21 
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roadways, pedestrian island? 1 

  MR. HENSON:  Portions of DDOT may 2 

have been. 3 

  MR. WHITE:  Yeah, I believe--I 4 

believe no one at this--at this dias has, but 5 

I believe there have been planners that have 6 

attended these meetings; yes. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Is there any sense of 8 

that-- 9 

  MR. HENSON:  We didn't testify to 10 

the park, though.  I'll go ahead and be clear. 11 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. 12 

  MR. HENSON:  There may have 13 

been--DDOT participates in a variety of things, 14 

similar to our colleagues at OP. 15 

  MR. OTTEN:  I appreciate that. 16 

  MR. HENSON:  But that's not part of 17 

our report. 18 

  MR. OTTEN:  It's--it's being 19 

offered as an amenity and I guess I wonder if 20 

that is--is going to come forward at any point 21 
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in terms of whether this park will be shrunk 1 

to meet the tour buses, or any of the taxis? 2 

  MR. HENSON:  Frankly, I'm--I'm not 3 

familiar with it, and if it's part of the DDOT 4 

controlled public space, it would have to go 5 

through the permitting process where we would 6 

rigorously review it. 7 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay. Appreciate that. 8 

Also part of the rigorous review, in the Comp 9 

Plan, there is a specific section that talks 10 

about pedestrian safety. 11 

  Has DDOT looked at these plans 12 

through the lens of the pedestrian safety 13 

analysis identified in the Comp Plan? 14 

  MR. WHITE:  We--we do in--in terms 15 

of where we prefer vehicle access, and to be 16 

brief, we generally prefer vehicle access where 17 

there's a limited number of pedestrian vehicle 18 

conflicts. 19 

  MR. OTTEN:  Has DDOT looked at any 20 

analysis of the location of schools and your 21 
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hotels and how that might have played out, 1 

historically, to weigh in on child safety and 2 

this hotel? 3 

  MR. WHITE:  No. 4 

  MR. OTTEN:  And how about for the 5 

elderly?  Any analysis of the amount of elderly 6 

in the neighborhood that will be crossing these 7 

crosswalks? 8 

  MR. WHITE:  No.  Just--just so you 9 

know, however, pedestrian signals are--are 10 

timed to account for a slow walk rate. So that's 11 

how it's accounted for. 12 

  MR. OTTEN:  I appreciate that. 13 

  MR. HENSON:  As is the rest of our 14 

design and engineering manual, to accommodate 15 

the least of us. 16 

  MR. OTTEN:  But it is the case that 17 

there, along Euclid and Champlain, in these 18 

major points of interaction, there is no 19 

signaled lights; correct? 20 

  MR. WHITE:  Yes. 21 
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  MR. HENSON:  Correct. 1 

  MR. OTTEN:  Okay.  Thank you. 2 

Appreciate it.  Thank you.  3 

  CHAIRMAN HOOD:  Okay.  I think that 4 

Chairperson Reynolds has left, so we'll not be 5 

able to start with ANC report. I think that's 6 

where we'll start on October the 22nd at 6:00 7 

o'clock p.m.  With that--any other comments, 8 

colleagues? 9 

  Okay.  With that, we will see you 10 

on October 22nd at 6:00 p.m.  Good night. 11 

  (Whereupon, at 6:00 p.m., the 12 

proceedings went off the record.) 13 
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